Public Document Pack

itg. MANCHESTER
CITY COUNCIL

Licensing Sub Committee Hearing
Panel

Date: Monday, 22 January 2024

Time: 10.00 am
Venue: Council Antechamber, Level 2, Town Hall Extension

Everyone is welcome to attend this committee meeting.

Access to the Council Antechamber

Public access to the Council Antechamber is on Level 2 of the Town Hall Extension,
using the lift or stairs in the lobby of the Mount Street entrance to the Extension.
There is no public access from any other entrances of the Extension.

Membership of the Licensing Sub Committee
Hearing Panel

Councillors - Connolly, Reid and Riasat



Licensing Sub Committee Hearing Panel

Agenda

1.

Urgent Business
To consider any items which the Chair has agreed to have
submitted as urgent.

Appeals

To consider any appeals from the public against refusal to allow
inspection of background documents and/or the inclusion of items
in the confidential part of the agenda.

Interests

To allow Members an opportunity to [a] declare any personal,
prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interests they might have in
any items which appear on this agenda; and [b] record any items
from which they are precluded from voting as a result of Council
Tax/Council rent arrears; [c] the existence and nature of party
whipping arrangements in respect of any item to be considered at
this meeting. Members with a personal interest should declare
that at the start of the item under consideration. If Members also
have a prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interest they must
withdraw from the meeting during the consideration of the item.

Review of a Premises Licence - Sky Lounge, 241 Barlow
Moor Road, Manchester, M21 7QL

The report of the Head of Planning, Building Control and
Licensing is enclosed.

5-314



Licensing Sub Committee Hearing Panel

Information about the Committee

The Licensing Sub-Committee Hearing Panel fulfills the functions of the Licensing
Authority in relation to the licensing of premises.

A procedure has been agreed which governs how the Panel will consider such
applications.

Decisions made by the Panel will be under delegated authority and will not require to
be referred to the Council for approval. Meetings are controlled by the Chair, who is
responsible for seeing that the business on the agenda is dealt with properly.

Copies of the agenda are published on the Council’'s website. Some additional copies
are available at the meeting from the Governance Support Officer.

The Council is concerned to ensure that its meetings are as open as possible and
confidential business is kept to the strict minimum. When confidential items are
involved these are considered at the end of the meeting at which point members of
the public are asked to leave.

Smoking is not allowed in Council buildings.

Joanne Roney OBE

Chief Executive

Level 3, Town Hall Extension,
Albert Square,

Manchester, M60 2LA

Further Information

For help, advice and information about this meeting please contact the Committee
Officer:

Callum Jones

Tel: 0161 234 4940

Email: callum.jones@manchester.gov.uk

This agenda was issued on Friday, 12 January 2024 by the Governance and
Scrutiny Support Unit, Manchester City Council, Level 2, Town Hall Extension
(Library Walk Elevation), Manchester M60 2LA



This page is intentionally left blank



Item 4

Manchester City Council
Report for Resolution

Report to: Licensing Sub-Committee Hearing Panel — 22 January 2024

Subject: Sky Lounge, 241 Barlow Moor Road, Manchester, M21 7QL
(Review of Premises Licence, App ref - 296081)

Report of: Head of Planning, Building Control & Licensing

Summary
Review of the premises licence under s51 of the Licensing Act 2003
Recommendations

That the Panel, having regard to the application and any relevant representations, take
what steps are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

Wards Affected: Chorlton Park

Manchester Strategy Summary of the contribution to the strategy
Outcomes

A thriving and sustainable City: | Licensed premises provide a key role as an
supporting a diverse and employer, in regeneration, and in attracting people
distinctive economy that to the city. The efficient processing of applications

creates jobs and opportunities | as well as effective decision making in respect of
them, plays an essential role in enabling
businesses to thrive and maximise contribution to
the economy of the region and sub-region.

A highly skilled city: world An effective Licensing regime will enable growth in
class and home grown talent our City by supporting businesses who promote the
sustaining the city’s economic | Licensing Objectives.

success

A progressive and equitable The Licensing process provides for local residents
city: making a positive and other interested parties to make

contribution by unlocking the representations in relation to licensing applications.
potential of our communities Representations have to be directly related to the

licensing objectives.

Page 5



Item 4

A liveable and low carbon city: | An effective licensing system supports and enables
a destination of choice to live, | growth and employment in our City with

visit and work. neighbourhoods that provide amenities suitable to
the surrounding communities.

A connected city: world class
infrastructure and connectivity
to drive growth

Full details are in the body of the report, along with any implications for:

e Equal Opportunities Policy
¢ Risk Management
e Legal Considerations

Financial Consequences — Revenue
None
Financial Consequences — Capital

None

Contact Officers:

Name: Fraser Swift

Position: Principal Licensing Officer

Telephone: 0161 234 1176

E-mail: fraser.swift@manchester.gov.uk

Name: Helen Howden

Position: Technical Licensing Officer

Telephone: 0161 234 4294

E-mail: Premises.licensing@manchester.gov.uk

Background documents (available for public inspection):

The following documents disclose important facts on which the report is based and
have been relied upon in preparing the report. Copies of the background documents
are available up to 4 years after the date of the meeting. If you would like a copy,
please contact one of the contact officers above.

e Manchester City Council Statement of Licensing Policy.
e Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003.

Page 6



Item 4

e Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005
¢ Any further documentary submissions by any party to the hearing

Page 7



1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1
2.2

2.3

4.2

4.3

4.4

ltem 4

Introduction

On 29/11/2023 an application was made by the Licensing Out of Hours and
Enforcement Team under s51 of the Licensing Act 2003 for a Review of the
Premises Licence for Sky Lounge, 241 Barlow Moor Road, Manchester,
M21 7QL in the Chorlton Park ward of Manchester. A location map and
photograph of the premises is attached at Appendix 1.

A 28-day public consultation exercise has been undertaken in accordance with
Licensing Act 2003 regulations; requiring the application to be advertised by
the displaying of a blue notice at or on the premises and details of the
application to be published on the Council’s website.

The licensing authority must hold a hearing to consider an application to
review a premises licence and any relevant representations.

The Application
A copy of the application is attached at Appendix 2.

The applicant is the Licensing Out of Hours and Enforcement Team, on behalf
of Environmental Health.

The application for a review was submitted on the grounds that the licence
holder has failed to uphold all four licensing objectives: ie the prevention of
crime and disorder, public safety, the prevention of public nuisance, the
protection of children from harm.

Further details of the grounds for the review are as follows:

e Persistent refusal from the licence holder to comply with the hours &
multiple conditions of the licence

e Refusal by the licence holder to provide CCTV in line with conditions & in
connection with allegations of unauthorised licensable activities

e Complaints received by members of the public relating to nuisance &
licensing offences

e Offences being committed under the Health Act 2006 relating to smoke
free legislation

Current Premises Licence

A copy of the current licence is attached at Appendix 3.

The premises licence holder is Salar Henareh who has held the licence since
18/09/2023.

The designated premises supervisor named on the licence is Majid Mirzaeian.
Para 6.3 gives information about the recent history regarding the DPS.

The licensable activities (were there a designated premises supervisor in
place) and opening time permitted by the licence are:

Page 8



5.2

Sale by retail of alcohol*
Recorded music**
Opening times

Mon to Sun 11am to 9.30pm
Mon to Sun 11am to 9.30pm
Mon to Sun 11am to 9.30pm

ltem 4

* The sale of alcohol is licensed for consumption on the premises only.
** Licensed to take place indoors only.

Relevant Representations

Representations may be made for or against a review application during the
consultation period. To be ‘relevant’ and, therefore, able to be taken into
account in determining the application, they must relate to one or more of the
licensing objectives. Representations may be made by the holder of the
premises licence, a responsible authority or any other person. Where
representations are made by persons who are not a responsible authority,
they must not be frivolous or vexatious.

A total of two relevant representations have been received in respect of this
application (Appendix 4). The personal details of all members of the public
have been redacted. Original copies of the representations will be available to
the Panel at the hearing. Representations were received from the following
persons / bodies:

Responsible Authoritiy:
e Greater Manchester Police

Other Persons:
e Chorlton Park Ward Councillors

Summary of the representations:

The representation gives details of an incident
report filed in November. This was later
expanded on and reports a number of
complaints about the premises, details of
which are included in the representation.

A specific concern highlighted by GMP relates
to non-compliance with CCTV requirements.

Continued....

On 12 December 2023 GMP emailed the
premises licence holder to request CCTV
footage from the premises. Subsequent email
correspondence took place between the
licence holder and GMP (copy attached to the

Party Grounds of representation Recommends
Greater GMP comment that at the time of submitting GMP “ask the
Manchester | this representation the premises licence has committee to
Police been in in force for only 3 months. take

appropriate
measures to
ensure that
the licensing
objectives do
not continue
to be
undermined.”

Page 9




6.
6.1

ltem 4

the GMP representation). At the time of
submitting their representation GMP had not
received an email to inform them that the
requested CCTV has been downloaded and is
available for collection.

GMP conclude that they “do not believe that
the operators are abiding by the conditions of
their premises licence” and that they are
undermining the 4 licensing objectives. GMP
state their full support for the application to
review the premises licence.

Chorlton
Park Ward
Councillors

Councillors report that “Within the first week of
opening, it was necessary to involve the
LOOH team” due to issues raised by
neighbours and observed by Councillors.
Since the premises opened, Councillors “have
received a stream of queries and complaints”
about “a whole series of activities being
undertaken at the premises in breach of
licensing undertakings”.

Examples of complaints received by
Councillors are included in the representation,
which are “hopefully enough to illustrate to the
Committee that local residents have been
caused significant and persistent disamenity
by this business” by issues such as:

e Parking — “a clear lack of respect for the
regulations and access rights in place on
the street.”

e Shisha — “there were lots of tables outside

doing shisha and | thought it was explicitly

stated shisha wouldn't be sold”

Loud music

Trading outside licensed hours

Bins on the pavement area

Store area - described as “overflowing”.

One resident summarised: “it makes you
wonder how many other agreements will be
broken”. The Councillors conclude by saying
that the premises “has been a really
extremely disruptive presence.”

Not stated

Additional information

Additional information has been received from the Licensing and Out of Hours
team in support of their representation, attached as Appendix 5.

Page 10



ltem 4

6.2 Blue notices: An appendix regarding blue notices has been added by the
Premises Licensing team, attached as Appendix 6. This documents the
history of blue notices at the premises. Notices were found to have been
removed and had to be replaced on more than one occasion.

6.3 Application to vary the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS):

e An application to vary the DPS from Majid Mirzaeian to Salar Henareh was
received 2 December 2023 but was rejected as it was incomplete. The
application was accepted 12 December 2023. The application requested to
have immediate effect.

e GMP objected to the application.

¢ A hearing took place on 8 January 2024. The decision was to refuse the
application. The person named as DPS therefore reverts to Majid
Mirzaeian.

6.4 Layout plan attached to the licence

e The premises licensing team had email correspondence between 6 and 30
November with both the LOOH team and the premises licence holder
regarding varying the plan attached to the licence.

¢ An application to vary both the plan and the times on the licence was
received by the Premises Licensing team on 12 December 2023. It was
incomplete and was rejected on 13 December 2023. The application was
resubmitted on 14 December and was rejected again on 15 December.
The application has not been resubmitted at the time of publication of these

papers.
7. Key Policies and Considerations
71 Legal Considerations

7.1.1  Hearings under the Licensing Act 2003 operate under the Licensing Act 2003
(Hearings) Regulations 2005.

7.2 New Information

7.2.1 In accordance with Regulation 18 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings)
Regulations 2005, the authority may take into account documentary or other
information produced by a party in support of their application, representations
or notice either before the hearing or, with the consent of all parties, at the
hearing.

7.3 Hearsay Evidence

7.3.1 The Panel may accept hearsay evidence and it will be a matter for the Panel
to attach what weight to it that they consider appropriate. Hearsay evidence is
evidence of something that a witness neither saw nor heard, but has heard or
read about.

7.4 The Secretary of State’s Guidance to the Licensing Act 2003

7.4.1 The Secretary of State’s Guidance to the Licensing Act 2003 is provided to
licensing authorities in relation to the carrying out of their functions under the

Page 11



7.4.2

7.4.3

7.5

7.5.1

7.5.2

7.5.3

754

ltem 4

2003 Act. It also provides information to magistrates’ courts hearing appeals
against licensing decisions and has been made widely available for the benefit
of those who run licensed premises, their legal advisers and the general
public. It is a key medium for promoting best practice, ensuring consistent
application of licensing powers across England and Wales and for promoting
fairness, equal treatment and proportionality.

Section 4 of the 2003 Act provides that, in carrying out its functions, a
licensing authority must ‘have regard to’ guidance issued by the Secretary of
State under section 182. The Guidance is therefore binding on all licensing
authorities to that extent. However, the Guidance cannot anticipate every
possible scenario or set of circumstances that may arise and, as long as
licensing authorities have properly understood this Guidance, they may depart
from it if they have good reason to do so and can provide full reasons.

Departure from the Guidance could give rise to an appeal or judicial review,
and the reasons given will then be a key consideration for the courts when
considering the lawfulness and merits of any decision taken.

Manchester Statement of Licensing Policy

Section 4 of the 2003 Act provides that, in carrying out its functions, a
licensing authority must ‘have regard to’ its statement of licensing policy.

The Licensing Policy sets out the vision the licensing authority has for the
regulation of licensed premises throughout Manchester and outlines the
standards expected in order to ensure the promotion of the licensing
objectives in the city. The Panel may depart from the policies should it
consider doing so would benefit the promotion of the licensing objectives.
Reasons are to be given for any such departure from the Policy.

There are a number of references in the Policy to the licensing authority’s
expectations of applicants. The licensing authority will not apply the Policy
rigidly, but will always have regard to the merits of the case with a view to
promoting the licensing objectives.

Relevant to this application, the Panel are recommended to have regard to the
following sections of the Policy:

Section 6: What we aim to encourage
This section identifies certain types of venues and initiatives the licensing
authority aims to encourage in order to promote an inclusive evening and
night-time economy not simply focused on the consumption of alcohol. We
aim to encourage:
e Premises that will extend the diversity of entertainment and attract a
wider range of participants
e Live music, especially original material, which will provide a range of
live performances and styles of music, provided that such
entertainment does not undermine the licensing objectives
e National cultural institutions, global sports events and cultural festivals

Page 12



8.2

8.3

ltem 4

¢ Non-drink-led premises, including restaurants, cafes, theatres and
cinemas

e Communication and integration with local residents and businesses
through licensees consulting with those in the local area prior to an
application

e Participation in Pubwatches, off licence forums and other crime-
reduction partnerships

e Engagement with the NITENET radio scheme and DISC secure
information sharing platform by city centre venues through the Cityco
Manchester Business Crime Reduction Partnership

e Designing out crime in the layout of the premises

Section 8: Manchester’s standards to promote the licensing objectives
This section identifies the standards that the licensing authority expects of
licensed premises in Manchester. It is recognised that not all standards will be
appropriate to apply in every situation to every premises. The degree to which
standards would be appropriate is expected to be proportionate to the risk
posed against the promotion of the licensing objectives having regard to the
individual circumstances of the premises. The standards are not exhaustive
and the licensing authority will have regard to any relevant issues raised in
any representation that may fall outside them.

MS1  Implement effective security measures at the premises

MS2  Effective general management of the premises

MS3 Responsible promotion and sale of alcohol

MS8 Prevent noise nuisance from the premises

MS9  Effectively manage exterior spaces (eg beer gardens, smoking
areas, table and chair areas on the highway)

MS10 Operate effective cleansing arrangements, including ensuring the
premises and surrounding area are kept clean and free of litter, and
adequate arrangements for the secure and responsible storage of
refuse

MS11 Ensure the wellbeing of children on the premises

Conclusion

A licensing authority must carry out its functions under this Act (“licensing
functions”) with a view to promoting the licensing objectives:

a) the prevention of crime and disorder

b) public safety;

c) the prevention of public nuisance; and

d) the protection of children from harm.

In considering the matter, the Panel should take into account any
representations or objections that have been received from responsible
authorities or other persons, and representations made by the licence holder.
In reaching the decision, regard must also be had to relevant provisions of the
national guidance and the Council’s licensing policy statement.

The authority must take such of the steps below as it considers appropriate for
the promotion of the licensing objectives. The steps are —

Page 13



8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

ltem 4

a) to modify the conditions of the licence;

b) to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence;

c) to remove the designated premises supervisor;

d) to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;
e) to revoke the licence.

The conditions of the licence are modified if any of them is altered or omitted
or any new condition is added.

All licensing determinations should be considered on the individual merits of
the application.

The Panel’s determination should be evidence-based, justified as being
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to
what it is intended to achieve. Findings on any issues of fact should be on the
balance of probability.

It is important that a licensing authority should give comprehensive reasons for
its decisions in anticipation of any appeals. Failure to give adequate reasons
could itself give rise to grounds for an appeal.

The Panel is asked to take such steps, as set out in 8.3 above, as it
considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

Page 14



Appendix 1, Item 4

Sky Lounge

241 Barlow Moor Road, Manchester, M21 7QL

Premises Licensing © Crown copyright and database rights 2018. Ordnance
Manchester City Council Survey100019568.

PREMISE NAME: Sky Lounge

PREMISE ADDRESS: 241 Barlow Moor Road, Manchester, M21 7QL

WARD: Chorlton Park

HEARING DATE: 22/01/2024

Page 15




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2, Item 4

[Insert name and address of relevant licensing authority and its reference number (optional)]

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate under the
Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure
that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

(Insert name of applicant)

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 / apply for the review of a club
premises certificate under section 87 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in
Part 1 below (delete as applicable)

Part 1 — Premises or club premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description
Sky Lounge
241 Barlow Moor Road

Post town Post code (if known)
Manchester M21 7QL

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)
Salar Henareh

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)
287791

Part 2 - Applicant details

I am
Please tick v' yes

1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible
authority (please read guidance note 1, and complete (A)
or (B) below)

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below) X

3) a member of the club to which this application relates
(please complete (A) below)

Page 17



Appendix 2, Item 4

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)
Please tick v" yes

Mr Mrs Miss Ms Other title
(for example, Rev)

Surname First names

Please tick v" yes
I am 18 years old or over

Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address

Post town Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

Page 18



Appendix 2, Item 4

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Name and address

Gemma Hunt

Licensing & Out of Hours Team
Hammerstone Road Depot
Gorton

M18 8EQ

Teleihone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)
gemma.hunt@manchester.gov.uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please tick one or more boxes v/

1) the prevention of crime and disorder X
2) public safety X
3) the prevention of public nuisance X
4) the protection of children from harm X

Page 19



Appendix 2, Item 4

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2)
1. Persistent refusal from the Licence Holder to comply with the hours & multiple
conditions of the licence

2. Refusal by the Licence Holder to provide CCTV in line with conditions & in connection
with allegations of unauthorised licensable activities

3. Complaints received by members of the public relating to nuisance & licensing offences

4. Offences being committed under the Health Act 2006 relating to smoke free legislation

Page 20



Appendix 2,

Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read
guidance note 3)

The premises licence for Sky Lounge was granted on the 18™ September 2023 at a licensing
committee hearing.

At the committee hearing the licence holder gave a number of assurances to the committee of how
the premises would be operated. The hours were amended, and conditions offered to reflect this.
Additionally, a number of questions were put to the PLH to satisfy the committee that the
licensing objectives would be upheld at the premises. It was soon discovered after the premises
began operating that the PLH had misled the committee and had supplied deliberate and false
information.

15t November 2023 — The LOOH team received the 1% of 4 residential complaints against the
premises. The content of the complaints included the following:

1. The premises had been open for 1 week and on 2 occasions the premises had events
where loud music was causing a nuisance.

2. The premises are consistently breaching their operating hours and on 2 occasions in the
week as late as 11pm. This is as well as opening from approx. 9am (The opening hours of
the licence are 11am until 9.30pm).

3. Waste bins being left out on the pavement and over-flowing. (A notice has already been
served under S4 of the Prevention of Damage by Pests Act 1949 on the 21%t Feb 2023)

4. Inconsiderate parking from staff and customers on double yellow lines and blocking
driveways.

5. People smoking shisha causing odour nuisance, whilst drinking outside in breach of
licence conditions.

Since this date the LOOH team have completed multiple visits to the premise to engage with the
Premises Licence Holder (PLH) Salah Henareh and to investigate the alleged unauthorised
licensing activities and undermining of the Licensing Objectives.

LOOH have uncovered the following concerns and offences:

e The premises has continuously operated outside of permitted opening hours both in the
morning & night.

e The first named DPS _ advised LOOH he has never stepped foot inside the
premises & had no intention of working at the premises, he was asked by the PLH to be
named as DPS as a “favour’. He has not met staff or given them authority to sell alcohol,
nor do they know who he is. No other Personal Licence Holders worked at the premises
during his time as DPS.

e The above amounts to a breach of Mandatory Conditions 2a & 3 relating the DPS & the
supply of alcohol & a breach of Annex 3 Condition 12 ‘Between 11am and 9.30pm there
shall be a member of staff on the premises who holds a Personal Licence.” All 3 condition
breaches are an offence under S136 of the LA2003.

e Repeated breaches of the above 3 conditions in the period between 4™ & 10" November
from when _ resigned as DPS & the PLH appointing a new DPS.

e Repeated breaches of multiple conditions within Annex 2 & 3 outlined in warning letters
exhibited.

o Offences witnessed under the Health Act 2006 in relation to smoke free legislation.

e Floor Plan invalidated.

e ThePLH & staff members have continuously misled LOOH officers with false information.

e Qutright refusal to comply with Condition 1 of Annex 3 relating to CCTV. CCTV was
requested verbally on the 15t November & in writing on the 2" to investigate the allegations
of unauthorised licensable activity. The PLH did not have any one on site capable of
operating CCTV in line with conditions. LOOH returned on the 3" to be advised that a
CCTV engineer would need to facilitate this. After over 2 weeks of chasing the PLH for

Page 21

Item 4



Appendix 2, Item 4

the CCTV, on the 18" November the PLH then advised LOOH that he was waiting for
permission from his customers to disclose their images. He added that some men don’t like
images of their wife shared and that it was their religion.

LOOH followed this up with an email on the 19" November explaining that unless the
licence is complied with a review would be sought. As of the 29" November no response
or CCTV has been made viewable almost one month from request.

The intentional & persistent refusal to provide CCTV to authorities in line with licence
conditions is an offence under S136 of the Licensing Act 2003.

The PLH has made a wilful disregard to comply with his responsibilities under the Licensing
Act 2003 and has presented himself as untrustworthy and an irresponsible licence holder.

Due to the PLH’s choice not to comply with the licence the LOOH team are left with no option
than to seek remedial action from the Licensing committee.

Page 22



Appendix 2, Item 4

Please tick v" yes

Have you made an application for review relating to the
premises before

If yes please state the date of that application Day Month Year

If you have made representations before relating to the premises please state what they were
and when you made them

New application representation

Page 23



Appendix 2, Item 4

Please tick v’

e | have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities
and the premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate,
as appropriate
e | understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my
application will be rejected
X

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE
WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION
TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

Part 3 — Signatures (please read guidance note 4)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read
guidance note 5). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence
associated with this application (please read guidance note 6)

Gemma Hunt

Licensing & Out of Hours Team

Hammerstone Road Depot

Post town Post Code
Gorton M18 8EQ
Telephone number (if any)

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail address
(optional) gemma.hunt@manchester.gov.uk

Notes for Guidance

1. Arresponsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other

statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in the local area.

2. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.

3. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are
included in the grounds for review if available.
The application form must be signed.
An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided
that they have actual authority to do so.
6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

S

Page 24



Appendix 3, Item 4
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4, Item 4

ANCHESTER
ITY COUNCIL

<

LICENSING ACT 2003
PREMISES LICENCE

Premises licence number 287791
Granted 18/09/2023
Latest version DPS Variation 295192 Granted 25/11/2023_ \\

<
Part 1 - Premises details @
M

Name and address of premises

Sky Lounge @ N\

241 Barlow Moor Road, Manchester, M21 7QL
N

Licensable activities authorised by the licence

Rl
1. The sale by retail of alcohol*. \
2. The provision of regulated entertainment, limited

Recorded music;

* All references in this licence to “sale of atgohol” are to sale by retail.

AN
| The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities

TN\
Sale by retail of alcohol
Standard timings
Day Mon Tue\ ~ Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun
Start 1100 o)) 1100 1100 1100 1100 1100
Finish 2130 |9 R130 2130 2130 2130 2130 2130

The sale of alcohol is licehsed for consumption on the premises only.

Seasonal variations ang/on-standard Timings:
None {E Q

AN

Recorded music

Standard timings

Day S\ Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun
Start ) 1100 1100 1100 1100 1100 1100 1100
Finish 2130 2130 2130 2130 2130 2130 2130

Licensed to take place indoors only.

Seasonal variations and Non-standard Timings:
None

Page 1 of 7
Issued by:

Premises Licensing Team, PO Box 532, Mkaashdster City Council, Manchester M60 2LA



Appendix 4, Item 4

Hours premises are open to the public

Standard timings

Day Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun
Start 1100 1100 1100 1100 1100 1100 1100
Finish 2130 2130 2130 2130 2130 2130 2130
Seasonal variations and Non-standard Timings:

None

Part 2

Details of premises licence holder

@QB

Name: Mr Salar Henareh
Address:
Registered number: n/a

\\))

Details of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the
supply of alcohol

Name: Maiid Mirzaeian )
Address:

Personal Licence number: 283672

Issuing Authority: Manchester City Council ((i\\

AG?

Annex 1 — Mandatory conditions

N

Door Supervisors

o b
1. Only individuals licensed b{@@urity Industry Authority shall be used at the

premises to undertake securi Ivities, which include guarding against: -
(@) Unauthorised acce

(b) Outbreaks of di or
(c) Damage, ©

unless otherw%ﬁitled by virtue of section 4 of the Private Security Industry Act
2001 to garty out Such activities.

cupation (e.g. through door supervision),

Supply of dlco

2. ) ply of alcohol may be made under this premises licence:

At a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the
premises licence or,

(b) At a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal
licence or his personal licence is suspended.

3. Every retail sale or supply of alcohol made under this licence must be made or
authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

4. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that
an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale

Page 2 of 7
Issued by:

Premises Licensing Team, PO Box 532, Nkauash8dter City Council, Manchester M60 2LA




Appendix 4, Item 4

or supply of alcohol.

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must
ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with
the age verification policy.

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be
under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to
produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their
photograph, date of birth and either —

(a) a holographic mark, or %
(b) an ultraviolet feature.

5. (1) Arelevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or suppk @)n umption
on or off the premises for a price, which is less than the permitted)price.

(2) For the purposes of the condition set out in (1) above—

(@) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with t @1 lic Liquor Duties Act
1979 :
(b) “permitted price” is the price found by app' gthe formula—
P=D+(DxV)
where —
(i) P isthe permitted price,
(i) D is the amount of d argeable in relation to the alcohol as if the
duty were charged te of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and
(i) Vis the rate of dded tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as
if the value ad were charged on the date of the sale or supply of
the aIcoho@
(c) “relevant per eans, in relation to premises in respect of which there is
in forceya @iremises licence —
0] % er of the premises licence,
i) the/designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a
licence, or
iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of
alcohol under such a licence;

) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is
in force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club
present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer
to prevent the supply in question; and

(e) *“value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the
Value Added Tax Act 1994.

(3) Where the permitted price given by paragraph (2)(b) would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-
paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph
rounded up to the nearest penny.

Page 3 of 7
Issued by:

Premises Licensing Team, PO Box 532, NkaashaSter City Council, Manchester M60 2LA




Appendix 4, Item 4

(4) (a) Sub-paragraph (4)(b) applies where the permitted price given by paragraph
(2)(b) on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on
the next day (“the second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or
value added tax.

(b) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14
days beginning on the second day.

6. (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premise @o arry
out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relatio mises.
(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any \@nhe or more of the

following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on the purpose of
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption @ premises —

(@) games or other activities which require or e e, or are designed to

require or encourage, individualsto—
(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a i it (other than to drink alcohol

sold or supplied on the premise the cessation of the period in

which the responsible persga~ sed to sell or supply alcohol), or
(i) drink as much alcohol @ible (whether within a time limit or
otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or u d quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or
discounted fee to the te=a group defined by a particular characteristic
in a manner which a significant risk of undermining a licensing
objective; %

(c) provision of fr
encourage
of 24 hody

iscounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to
d the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period
Ss in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining
ctive;

a liceasing
(d) @Mpplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers
n
C

, Of\in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to
ne, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the
ects of drunkenness in any favourable manner;

) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other
than where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason
of disability).

7. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to
customers where it is reasonably available.

8. The responsible person must ensure that —

(@) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on
the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up
in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available

Page 4 of 7
Issued by:

Premises Licensing Team, PO Box 532, Nkaashdéter City Council, Manchester M60 2LA




Appendix 4, Item 4

to customers in the following measures —

(i) beer or cider: ¥ pint;
(i) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
(i) still wine in a glass: 125 ml;

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which
is available to customers on the premises; and

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the tity of
alcohol to be sold the customer is made aware that these rey) are
available.

For the purposes of conditions 6, 7 and 8 above, a responsible pe@r relation to a
licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence in resp&i premises, the

designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 18 ver who is authorised
by either the licence holder or designated premises supervi r ‘c) remises with a club
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club }g‘ on the premises in a
capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of .'::‘)

N\

Annex 2 — Conditions consistent with the operating schedule

X&)
1. The premises shall be staffed with ‘@,:. taff on all aspects of restaurant
management and services.
2 q isi

contact.
4. A manager shall always i@e.

5. Risk assessments s carried out, and everything shall be supervised and
managed thorou

gh .
. Alcohol shall gonly nsumed on the premises strictly, served by trained staff only.

. No alcoholsha served to under 18’s.

6
7
8. Alcohol\shall)be served only with purchased foods and at tables served by staff.
9 all not be allowed on site without adults.

1

12.Between 1lam and 9.30pm there shall be a member of staff on the premises who
holds a Personal Licence.

13.SIA registered security staff shall be employed at the premises when the premises
has a booking of 20 or more persons on the premises.

14.Taxi numbers shall be positioned in prominent positions around the premises.

15.The name and telephone number of the manager in charge shall be prominently
displayed at the premises.

Page 5 of 7
Issued by:

Premises Licensing Team, PO Box 532, Nkauash8ster City Council, Manchester M60 2LA




Appendix 4, Item 4

Annex 3 — Conditions attached after hearing by the licensing authority

1. The premises licence holder shall ensure that:

a) CCTV cameras are located within the premises to cover all public areas
including all entrances and exits;

b) the system records clear images permitting the identification of individuals;

c) the CCTV system is able to capture a minimum of 24 frames per second and
all recorded footage shall be securely retained for a minimum of 28 days;

d) the CCTV system operates at all times while the premises are open for
licensable activities; %
1on;

e) all equipment shall have a constant and accurate time and date

f) the CCTV system is fitted with security functions to preve gs’being
tampered with, i.e. password protected;

g) there shall be at least one member of trained staff at th%)sremises during
operating hours able to provide viewable copies on t to police or
authorised local authority officers as soon asis r ly practicable in
accordance with the Data Protection Act 1998 replacement legislation).

2. Customers permitted to temporarily leave and t % nter the premises to smoke
must be restricted to a designated smoking ed by the plan attached . No
more than 8 of customers will be permitte itFin the designated smoking area
at any one time.

3. No drinks shall be taken outside in the.designated smoking area.

4. Clear and legible notices shall be tly displayed at any area used for smoking
requesting customers to respectith ds of local residents and to use the area
quietly.

5. Clear and legible notic
customers to respect |

6. The ‘Challengeoz me shall be operated to ensure that any person who
appears to be un age of 25 shall provide documented proof that he/she is over
18 years of @oof of age shall only comprise a passport, photo card driving
licence, @ ces warrant card, or a card bearing the PASS hologram.
g

be prominently displayed at all exits requesting
sidents and leave the area quietly.

7. All s
25’ poli

ed in the sale of alcohol shall be trained with regards to the ‘Challenge

d sales by proxy. This training shall be documented, and training shall be

at no greater than 6 monthly Intervals. A log is to be kept of the persons
t ing the training.

8. e Premises Licence Holder shall ensure that signage demonstrating the ‘Challenge
25’ policy, as well as selling alcohol to children by proxy, are placed at the entrance
to the premises as well as being displayed in all areas serving alcohol.

9. A log shall be kept and shall record all instances when alcohol has been refused for
the reasons that the person(s) is, or appear to be, under 18 years of age. The log
shall record the date and time of the refusal and the name of the member of staff who
refused the sale. The log shall be available on request by the police or an authorised
officer of Manchester City Council. The log shall be checked on a regular basis by the
Designated Premises Supervisor

Page 6 of 7
Issued by:

Premises Licensing Team, PO Box 532, Nkauashdster City Council, Manchester M60 2LA




Appendix 4, Item 4

Annex 4 — Plans

See attached

Page 7 of 7
Issued by:

Premises Licensing Team, PO Box 532, NRagsh&Ster City Council, Manchester M60 2LA




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 5, Item 4
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 7, Item 4

GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE - REPRESENTATION

About You
Name PC Alan Isherwood
Address including postcode 18t Floor
Manchester Town Hall Extension
Lloyd Street
Manchester
Contact Email Address alan.isherwood@gmp.police.uk
Contact Telephone Number 0161 856 6017
About the Premises
Review Reference No. 296081
Name of the Premises Sky Lounge
Address of the premises 241 Barlow Moor Road, Manchester M21 7QL
including postcode

Your Representation

Please accept this representation as Greater Manchester Police's support of the application submitted by the
Manchester City Council Licensing and Out of Hours Team to the review the above premises on the grounds of
Prevention of Crime and Disorder and the Prevention of Public Nuisance, Public Safety and the Protection of
Children from Harm.

The Premises Licence for the premises was granted on 18" September 2023 so at the time of submitting this
representation it has been licensed for only 3 months. Greater Manchester Police have looked at the previous 3
months and have discovered that onfjjjjjNovember 2023 | cotacted GMP to report that on

the victim stated [JJili] did not wish to pursue the I

allegation and was more concerned that the manner in which the premises were being operated was brought to
the attention of the relevant authorities.

On Saturday 9t December 2023 | received an email from Gemma Hunt from the MCC Licensing and Out of
Hours Team informing me that, despite several requests for CCTV made to the premises, the footage had not
been produced to her and if | could make a request for the footage myself.

On Tuesday 12" December 2023 | emailed the Premises Licence Holder to request the footage from the
premises and a copy of these email exchanges accompanies this representation.

At the time of submitting this representation GMP has not received an email to inform them that the requested
CCTV has been downloaded and is available for collection.

Therefore, GMP do not believe that the operators are abiding by the conditions of their premises licence and that
they are undermining the 4 licensing objectives and as such we fully support the application to review the
premises licence. We therefore ask the committee to take appropriate measures to ensure that the licensing
objectives do not continue to be undermined.

Page 51 Page 1 of 2



Appendix 7, Item 4

Alan Isherwood

A SR P G M - TSR E NIRRT X L T S S e s e e |
From: Alan Isherwood
Sent: 13 December 2023 07:23
To: Salar Henareh
Cc: Gemma Hunt; Paul O'Donnell
Subject: RE: Urgent CCTV Request from Greater Manchester Police Licensing

Good Morning
Thank you for your reply.
| am more than happy to speak to your solicitor so please put them in touch with me as soon as possible.

In the meantime, please let me know when | can collect the CCTV footage, that has been requested by myself and
also by the council on previous occasions dating back to early November, some six weeks ago. Bearing in mind one
of the dates is 28 days old now and another will be 28 days old in 2 days’ time, in order to abide by the CCTV
condition on your premises licence, you should ensure this footage is not overwritten and is downloaded
immediately.

Kind Regards
Alan

PC 17659 Alan Isherwood
Divisional Licensing Officer
Greater Manchester Police

City of Manchester Division

1% Floor

Manchester Town Hall Extension
Lloyd Street

Manchester

M2 5DB

alan.isherwood@gmp.police.uk

0161 856 6017

Follow us on Twitter: @gmpolice

*NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED*

From: Salar Henareh

Sent: 12 December 2023 20:55

To: Alan Isherwood <Alan.Isherwood@gmp.police.uk>

Subject: Re: Urgent CCTV Request from Greater Manchester Police Licensing

Caution: This email came from outside GMP. Do not open attachments, click on links or scan QR codes in this
email unless you recognise the sender’s e-mail address and know the content is safe.

Good evening Alan,

Pade 52



Appendix 7, Item 4

Alan Isherwood

FaETTa = EIESE Zipan

From: Salar Henareh [

Sent: 12 December 2023 20:55

To: Alan Isherwood

Subject: Re: Urgent CCTV Request from Greater Manchester Police Licensing

Caution: This email came from outside GMP. Do not open attachments, click on links or scan QR codes in this
email unless you recognise the sender’s e-mail address and know the content is safe.

Good evening Alan,

Thank you for your email and sorry for the delay but | have been extremely busy today. I'm happy to provide you
with everything as I'm following the law correctly, license and not breaking rules. this a family business and we have
invested a lot of money because we aim to provide the community with something unique and healthy. I've

been having a problem with the camera system since last week and contacted the engineer to fix the system. I'm not
above the law at all and | respect every rule. | appreciate you can understand that this is a new business and | feel
I've been targeted. The community are very happy as we provide the best service for our community.

once the system is fixed | will send you everything.

| also have another issue, we provide private parties upstairs for the Muslim community and | need to get their
permission before | send their photos off as they were not wearing scarves and it is against the law to share their
footage. | will speak to my lawyer regarding this point as | don't want to breach any GPDR. this is the only reason |
have not provided her with footage as | will be breaching their confidentiality.

| would also like to know who issued the complaint and the allegation as | need to investigate it with the staff. Now
I'm attending the premises every day and also advertised for a manager role. | have also arranged staff meetings
with all the staff and employed new staff who is able to speak English fluently, reinforcing the rules and regulations,
so everyone is clear about the job and rules. My manager also is preparing a new document for all the staff to sign
so everyone is clear about the rules.

I will also ask my lawyer to be in touch with you regarding false allegations made against me.
Thank you very much for your cooperation. i look forward to hearing form you.
Many Thanks

Regards
Salar Henareh

On Tue, 12 Dec 2023 at 14:07, Alan Isherwood <Alan.Isherwood @gmp.police.uk> wrote:

Good Afternoon

It has been brought to the attention of the Greater Manchester Police Licensing Unit that your premises is
suspected of carrying out licensable activities contrary to the permissions of your Premises Licence and, also, that
criminal activity may have been carried out on the premises, and as such we require CCTV footage from your
premises.

We require the CCTV footage for the following dates and times:

Pagé 53




Appendix 7, Item 4

14" November 2023 between 5pm & Midnight
15™ November 2023 between 5pm & midnight

6" December 2023 from 2130 hours until 0030 hours on the 7th

We require the footage from the cameras covering the whole of the upstairs first floor of
the premises, cameras covering the entrance/ exit of the ground floor, and cameras
covering the ground floor bar.

As you will be aware the CCTV condition attached to your Premises Licence states:

1. The premises licence holder shall ensure that;

a. CCTV cameras are located within the premises to cover all public areas including all entrances and
exits;

b. the system records clear images permitting the identification of individuals;

c. the CCTV system is able to capture a minimum of 24 frames per second and all recorded footage
shall be securely retained for a minimum of 28 days;

d. the CCTV system operates at all times while the premises are open for licensable activities;
e. all equipment shall have a constant and accurate time and date generation;

f.  the CCTV system is fitted with security functions to prevent recordings being tampered with, i.e.
password protected;

g. there shall be at least one member of trained staff at the premises during operating hours able to
provide viewable copies on request to police or authorised local authority officers as soon as is
reasonably practicable in accordance with the Data Protection Act 1998 (or any replacement
legislation).

Please can you arrange for this footage to be downloaded onto a removable storage device,
such as a USB drive, as soon as possible and certainly by the end of the day on Wednesday 13t
December 2023 in order to ensure that the footage doesn't overwrite itself after the 28 day pJeriod
has elapsed.

2
Page 54



PC 17659 Alan Isherwood
Divisional Licensing Officer
Greater Manchester Police

City of Manchester Division

1°* Floor

Manchester Town Hall Extension
Lloyd Street

Manchester

M2 5DB

alan.isherwood@gmp.police.uk

0161 856 6017

Follow us on Twitter: @gmpolice

*NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED*

For emergencies only call 999, or 101 if it's a less urgent matier.

You can also connect with us on:

o Facebook: www.facebook.com/GtrManchesterPolice
Twitter: www.twitter.com/gmpolice
Instagram: www.instagram.com/gtrmanchesterpolice
Flickr: www.flickr.com/gmpolice1
YouTube: www.youtube.com/gmpolice
Pinterest: www.pinterest.co.uk/ampolice

4
Page 55

Appendix 7, Item 4



Appendix 7, Item 4

From: Mandie Shilton Godwin <cllr.mandie.shiltongodwin@manchester.gov.uk>

Sent: 19 December 2023 15:46

To: Premises Licensing <Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk>

Cc: Dave Rawson <cllr.dave.rawson@manchester.gov.uk>; Joanna Midgley
<cllr.joanna.midgley@manchester.gov.uk>

Subject: Application to Review Premises Licence 287791 - Sky Lounge (application ref 296081/HH)
OBJECTION

OBJECTION TO CONTINUING LICENSING OF SKY LOUNGE

| write on behalf of all three local councillors. We believe that this licence should
be withdrawn as the applicant has proved himself either unable or unwilling to
adhere to the terms and conditions of the licence.

Councillor David Rawson attended the original Licensing Hearing for the Sky
Lounge application. We have all been extremely disappointed to see that these
premises have not operated as the applicant said they would.

Within the first week of opening, it was necessary to involve the LOOH team
because of issues raised by neighbours to the restaurant and observations from
Councillors.

LOOH visits confirmed a number of breaches of the agreed operating hours and
procedures.

Since the premises opened we have received a stream of queries and complaints
from the closest neighbours and from other businesses in the same parade about
a whole series of activities being undertaken at the premises in breach of licensing
undertakings. In fact we received a number of complaints even before the
business opened . However those primarily relate to breaches of planning law so
are separate from this process. It is, however, probably worth noting at this point
that the proprietor has received a STOP notice for building work undertaken
outwith planning permission, and that this has only partially been appealed
therefore the proprietor is already required to dismantle parts of the building by
Summer 2024 which were constructed without planning permission.

Page 56



Appendix 7, Item 4

Below is a sample of concerns raised with us by residents or workers from local
businesses: All names and dates can be supplied if necessary.

‘It was opening night of Sky Lounge tonight, and as we returned home from work
it is clear that the concerns we previously raised around parking and the impact on
local residents are very much real.

‘| attach pictures of visitors having parked multiple cars either on the yellow lines
at the end of the street or directly in front of our drive and our neighbours' at no.1.
We needed to go in and speak the restaurant manager to ask their guests to move
several cars, just to park on our own drive. There is a clear lack of respect for the
regulations and access rights in place on the street.’

....there were lots of tables outside doing shisha and | thought it was explicitly
stated shisha wouldn't be sold

To add to it further they were playing really loud music, in the extension part of
the building with the door open.

[My partner] has just gone across the road to ask them to turn it down as the
kids are asleep/its really annoying.

‘A few things that they haven’t stuck to since the premises licence application was
granted.

Trading outside their licensing hours, they are opening before 11am, for example
yesterday people were eating food in the Restaurant at 10:30am, not sure if they
are trading past 9pm as | haven’t been at the office that late.

| have personally seen people smoking shish pipes.

They are keeping their bins on the pavement on Aldermary road, their rubbish
store area is overflowing.

Customers are parking across _ and parking

on the double yellow lines on Aldermary road. *

Page 57



Appendix 7, Item 4

Just wanted to raise a number of issues regarding the sky lounge > restaurant,
they are already breaching the permitted opening hours which states all business
should cease by 9.30 pm but a party was held there at the weekend until gone
11pm and last night they appeared to be allowing customers to smoke shisha in
the smoking area until well after 10pm and | recall the owner stating that Shisha
would not be used when applying for planning permission ,it makes you wonder
how many other agreements will be broken . A neighbour who complained about

the noise from the party [ NN
I < e/ shisha smoke in [N again not

acceptable, also there [sic] large rubbish bins are being stored on the pavement
and not in the bin store as promised which are causing an obstruction particularly
when cars are being parked on the pavement on double yellow lines. it would
appear our concerns about granting planing permission were well founded and
as expected issues around parking can only get worse as the number of customers
increases , not at all sure where or how to complain but | can only see the
situation getting worse

This is not a complete list of incidences but hopefully enough to illustrate to the
committee that local residents have been caused significant and persistent
disamenity by this business which has been established and operated in manner
entirely divorced from local surroundings from the start. This area of our ward is
very quiet during the evenings, and it has been a really extremely disruptive
presence.

| hope this is helpful
Kind regards
Mandie

Councillor Mandie Shilton Godwin

Labour and Co-operative Member for Chorlton Park

Chair, Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee
Lead Member for Active Travel

Manchester City Council

Members Services

Page 58



Appendix 7, Item 4

Town Hall
Manchester M60 2LA

sk sk sk ok ok ok sk ok sk ok ok sk sk ok sk sk ok sk ok sk sk sk sk sk sk sk ok sk sk ok ok sk ok ok sk sk sk sk sk ok sk sk sk ok ok sk sk sk sk ok ok sk ok sk ok ok ok sk ok ok ok sk sk sk ok ok

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are
addressed.

If you have received this email in error, please notify the system manager.

The full text of the Council's email disclaimer is available at: www.manchester.gov.uk/emaildisclaimer.

Your personal data is very important to us. Please refer to our privacy notice at: www.manchester.gov.uk/privacy for further information.

This footnote also confirms that this email message has been swept for the presence of computer viruses.
sk 3k 3k ok ok ok ok ok oK ok ok 3k 3k ok 3k 3k ok 3k ok oK oK oK ok ok 5k 3k ok 3k 3k 3 3k 3k ok ok ok ok ok 5k 3k ok 3k 3k 3k 3k ok oK oK oK oK oK 3k ok ok 3k %k o 3k o ok o ok ok ok sk ok

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 8, Item 4
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 9, Item 4

LOOH Supporting Evidence

Review Application - Sky Lounge, 241 Barlow Moor Road Chorlton

Page 71



Index

Section 1

Statements from LOOH Officers

Gemma Hunt (Case Officer)
Gareth Hall

Margaret Lewis

Sion Roberts

Wayne Adams

Steve Titterton

Paul Bonner

S Aoy T NG e

Section 2

Exhibits

GH1 — New Premises Licence Hearing Minutes 18/9/23

GH2 — Premises Licence

GH3 - Floor Plans

GH4 — Instagram Post 31/10/23

GH5 & GH6 — Photo’s Received

GH?7 - Section 4 Prevention of Damage by Pests Act 1949 Notice
GH8 — Signed Licence Application (S158 LA2003)

GH9 — Email to PLH re Warning Letter, inc CCTV request
GH10 — Licence for -(5158 LA2003)

GH11 — Email to PLH re follow up with Training Insert

GH12 — Emails to PLH re Floor Plans

GH13 — Email to PLH re Vary DPS & CCTV Request

GH14 — Email to PLH chasing CCTV

GH15 — Email to PLH re DPS Meeting & Chasing CCTV Footage
GH16 — Email to PLH re Review Action Warning

GH17 — Email to PLH re Floor Plans

GH18 — Email re Submission of Review Application

GH19 — Email from PLH re CCTV Request

Page 72

Appendix 9, Item 4



GH20 - Email to PLH re CCTV

GH21 — Email from PLH re CCTV

GH22 — Email to PLH re CCTV

GH23 — Email from PLH re Review

GH24 — Email from PLH re CCTV

GH25 — Email to PLH re CTV

GH26 — Email to PLH re New CCTV Request
GH27 — Email Trail with GMP & PLH re CCTV
GH28 — Email Trail with New Business Partner
GH29 — Email from -re Ceased Involvement
GH30 — Email to PLH New CCTV Request
GH31 — Website

GRO1 — Photo taken 18/11/23

GRO2 - Photo taken 29/11/23

GRO3 — Photo taken 29/11/23

GR04 — Photo taken 1/12/23

GRO5 — Photo taken 1/12/23

GRO6 — Photo taken 1/12/23

PBO1 — Photo taken 31/12/23 (S136)

PB02 — Photo taken 31/12/23 (S136)

PBO3 — Photo taken 31/12/23 (S136)
Section 3
Summary of Complaints Received

Summary of Visits & Call Outs

Section 4

Summary of Planning Status

Page 73

Appendix 9, Item 4



Appendix 9, Item 4

Page 74



Appendix 9, Item 4

Upon checking council ‘flare’ records | can see that a ‘Section 4 Prevention of
Damage by Pests Act 1949’ notice had been served on 215 February 2023 when
construction works were taking place at the premises. The company who dealt with
the renovation is and the director is Salar Henareh,
who is also the licence holder for Sky Lounge. | duly made a referral to our waste
team. | attach a copy of the notice as exhibit GH7.

On the 1%t November 2023 | made a visit to Sky Lounge at approximately 1600
hours with my colleague Gareth Hall. | spoke with a member of staff who
approached us on entry and asked to speak witHj ||| | | BBl the named DPS
(Designated Premises Supervisor), but the member of staff did not know who he
was and instead called someone from the kitchen. | was therefor concerned that
the following mandatory conditions were in breach, which would make the sale of
alcohol unauthorised:

mandatory condition number 2: ‘No supply of alcohol may be made under this
premises: (a) At a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in
respect of the premises

and mandatory condition number 3: ‘Every retail sale or supply of alcohol made
under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds a
personal licence’.

Additionally, in the committee hearing Salah Henareh volunteered a condition to
the licence as follows:

Annex 3 Condition 12 ‘between 11am and 9.30pm there shall be a member of
staff on the premises who holds a personal licence’.

ame to speak with us and advised us that he is || || NG '
asked again to speak with ||} ]l and | explained that there is a condition
on the licence that a Personal Licence Holder must be on site. || G
advised me the manager had been working today but that she had just nipped out.
| advised that we would wait for her to return.
advised me that he had applied to |||} I o' 2 Personal Licence. He
then explained that he had booked on a training course and had not applied for a
licence yet.

| could see a male sat in a rear booth of the premises with |l Staff were
coming back and forth to speak with him. | now know this male as I
iand a business partner in the business. Referring to exhibit GH1, on the
18" September 2023 Salar Henareh addressed the committee and advised when
questioned that there were no business partners for the premises. Throughout the

visit, | GGG i not approach us. | exhibit the signed last page of the
premises licence application relating to S158 of the Licensing Act 2003, as GH8.

In the committee hearing on the 18" September 2023 Salar Henareh volunteered
a condition to his licence Annex 2 Condition 11:

‘The restaurant will be restricted to 80 covers.

| could see on the ground floor plan attached to the licence the service kitchen
area was not present and instead was an extended seating area. Therefore, |
counted the seats downstairs, however due to there being booths, | estimated the
seating to be for 56 people.

Signed 4@4

Dated......... 711/24..........

Page 75



Appendix 9, Item 4

then called Salah Henareh the Premises Licence Holder on his
mobile phone and passed the phone to me. | spoke with Salah Henareh and
explained that there was no one on site who held a Personal Licence and asked
where the DPS was. Salah Henareh assured me that the manager had just nipped
out and they would ask her to return. | then asked if she was able to produce
CCTV in line with conditions of the licence. Salah Henareh advised me | could
return tomorrow to view CCTV. | explained to Salah Henareh part g of condition 1
of annex 3 of the licence:

1. The premises licence holder shall ensure that:

a) CCTV cameras are located within the premises to cover all public
areas including all entrances and exits;

b) the system records clear images permitting the identification of
individuals;
c) the CCTV system is able to capture a minimum of 24 frames per

second and all recorded footage shall be securely retained for a
minimum of 28 days;

d) the CCTV system operates at all times while the premises are open
for licensable activities;

e) all equipment shall have a constant and accurate time and date
generation;

f) the CCTV system is fitted with security functions to prevent
recordings being tampered with, i.e. password protected;

g) there shall be at least one member of trained staff at the
premises during operating hours able to provide viewable
copies on request to police or authorised local authority officers
as soon as is reasonably practicable in accordance with the Data
Protection Act 1998 (or any replacement legislation).

Salah Henareh said to me 'you are wrong, you need to read the licence'. |
explained to Salar Henareh that he needed to read his licence conditions and he
responded saying ‘this is because of the residents complaining’. | explained |
would return to meet with him and to view the CCTV.

| then moved upstairs to wait for the manager with my colleague Gareth Hall &

I counted the seating upstairs and estimated this to be
for 45 people, which in total gave an estimate of seating for approx. up to 101
customers. | could see the first floor of the premises was set up for service and
beer kegs connected behind the bar to pumps. | asked [INNEGTGTcNG i upstairs
was in use, and he responded that upstairs was never in use for customers.

| returned downstairs at approximately 1624 hours. A male came to us from behind
the bar asked if he could help, | asked if he was the ||| | | | I d he replied

that he was. -then interjected and said that he couldn’t speak to us
and that a manager was on her way.

Page 76



Appendix 9, Item 4

| explained to_there was a condition on the licence Annex 2

Condition 4:
‘A manager shall always be on site.’

| explained that the male stepping forward as|i I cant they were
not in breach of this condition, however, as he advised he is not, then this would

put them back in breach of the condition. NN sti!! did not make me
aware that a business partner was sat just a few tables away from us.

At 1650 hours a female arrived at the premises, and | could see she was pottering

around with boxes. | asked the female her name and she said she was and
. who | now know to be |

asked if she was the manager coming to meet us and she explained that she
wasn't, and that the lady was on her way.

At 1655 hours a female named || G- i < to speak with
us. | asked | N o you hold a Personal Licence?' ||

replied ‘no’. | asked, ‘have you done the course?’ ||}
replied ‘yes I'm waiting for the council to grant the licence’. |
asked, ‘can you provide proof you passed the course, what score did you get?’

replied ‘37/40'.

As | believed offences had taken place under the Licensing Act 2003, | then

formally cautioned NG | -s<<d R
#if she works at the premises and she replied, ‘no not yet, once

my personal licence is granted, | will help Il in the kitchen occasionally.’ |
asked, ‘so you have not been working at the premises today?’ ||l

replied ‘no | have not started working here yet'. | asked
who is the manager of the premises? She replied

is the manager of the premises | think'. | asked ‘do you know who
is? | <»'icc ‘the building owner | think'.

| then spoke with again and explained they had wasted a lot of our
time allowing us to wait for the manager and the person who arrived neither held a
Personal Licence nor works at the premises. | explained that they are in breach of
licence conditions by not having a Personal Licence Holder on site and
furthermore, staff are not aware who the DPS is and there is a question around
staff having authority to sell alcohol. | explained to ||| ] ] that the sale of
alcohol was currently unauthorised and that if they continued to sell alcohol, they

risked prosecution for the offence. ||| ] llthen advised he would stop
selling alcohol.

came to speak with Gareth Hall & myself, and we explained that to
avold committing the offence of exposing alcohol when it is not for sale, they
should remove and cover alcohol up. | tried explaining this several times along with
Gareth Hall, eventually_went into the bar and actioned this. We
then left the premises explaining that we would contact Salar Henareh.

Page 77



Appendix 9, Item 4

When | returned to the office, | completed social media and internet checks and
found the names mand I Hose pictures
matched the female | spoke with and the male | could see that was sat in a rear
booth.

On the 2" November 2023 | sent an email to Salar Henareh outlining the breaches
and concerns | had witnessed at the premises and additionally making a request
for CCTV in line with conditions. In the email | advised Salar Henareh | would
return on the 3™ November at 2pm to meet with him. | exhibit the email & letter as
GH9.

On the 3" November 2023 | returned to the premises with my colleague Gareth
Hall and met with Salar Henareh the Premises Licence Holder, We sat on the first
floor of the premises. | started the meeting by explaining to Salar Henareh that he
was not helping the situation by being dishonest with us, that yesterday we had
waited around to speak with a Personal Licence Holder and that the person who
showed up didn’t work there nor hold a licence. | explained that we would try to
work with him, and we could go through the licence together now.

| handed Salar Henareh a copy of his licence summary to display. | then went
through the letter | had emailed to him and how to rectify each condition breach.

We then looked through the Premises Licence together and discussed the hours,
activities, and each condition not already discussed. | asked Salar Henareh if he
had recommenced selling alcohol. He replied that he had not as he had sacked his
DPS. He said that || I 2< caused problems for him by leaving the
premises unattended the day we visited and that he had a new manager called
Majid Mirzaeian who held a Personal Licence and that he was going to start selling
alcohol again on Saturday. | explained to Salar Henareh that he would need to
make a vary DPS application to appoint Majid Mirzaeian and | text him the link
where he could do this online.

| asked Salar Henareh what days-he named DPS had worked so
far at the premises, and he replied ‘Thurs, Fri last week, then Mon, Tue and Fri &
Sat'.

When discussing the CCTV request we had made, Salar Henareh advised me the
CCTV system was on the 3™ floor and not configured so we could view it. He
advised me his CCTV engineer would rectify this to bring it to the second floor and
that they would be getting footage on their phones. Salar Henareh advised he

would get the footage to me by the end of the week, Sunday 5" January. Salar
Henareh advised me th [ - - <o

going to help him manage the business.

Page 78



Appendix 9, Item 4

| explained to Salar Henareh as there was changes to the layout of the premises
that a minor variation application would need to be submitted along with his new
floor plan. Salar Henareh disputed we had the correct plan and insisted he had
sent the final plan with the new premises licence application. | advised | would
check this for him.

| explained to Salar Henareh we had received noise complaints from residents
alleging that they were staying open until 11pm at night. | explained one of the
events was reported on Halloween. Salah Henareh advised me that they had a
party but did not close that late. He advised everyone had left for 2145 hours.

We discussed the loud music element of the complaint and Salar Henareh advised
me that no DJ had been working on Halloween and that the volume was below
69DB as agreed with the council. | explained that a DB volume had not been
agreed with the council. | explained how we assess for statutory noise nuisance
and explained further that due to the retractable roof extension, that | didn't believe
it would insulate sound well and further that music would escape when the sliding
door was opened as there was no second set of doors. | explained that it would be
a good idea to invite residents in for a meeting to make peace and move forward.

Salar Henareh responded that this was not his first business, that he knew how to
deal with neighbours, and he has set levels now. He added ‘| know who has
complained.’ As we got up to leave Salar Henareh then asked how he could
complain about the residents but did not expand what the complaint was about. |
heard my colleague Gareth Hall discuss council complaints procedures as we
were exiting the premises.

On my return to the office, | considered the changing story thamwas
working on the 15t November 2023, when we had been advised it was a female
manager working that day. | completed some web-based checks and found a
Licence with| N ouncil naming I =5 the Premises

Licence Holder and DPS for [

exhibit the licence as GH10.

This raised further questions around potential breaches of S158 of the Licensing
Act 2003, due to Salar Henareh informing the licensing committee on the 18"
September 2023 that qwas not a DPS at any other premises and
would be working at the premises full time until management staff were employed,

he would then work 3-4 days per week.

| telephoned I and spoke tmsaid to me
that| I vas his premises and confirmed that he had never stepped foot

inside Sky Lounge or met any of the staff selling alcohol. | asked why he was
named as the DPS, and he explained that Salar Henareh was his friend and he
had asked him to be named on the licence as a favour.

Signed
Dated.........

Page 79



Appendix 9, Item 4

On the 3" November 2023 | sent a follow up email to Salah Henareh with a
Challenge 25 training insert to assist him, which | exhibit as GH11.

On checking council ‘flare’ records | could see thamformally
resigned as DPS via Manchester Council’'s website on the ovember 2023.

On Monday 6" November 2023 | emailed Salar Henareh explaining that we only
had a copy of the old floor plan on file and that he would need to submit a variation
application which was acknowledged, | exhibit the emails as GH12.

In the same afternoon | called Salar Henareh to arrange collection of the CCTV.
Salar Henareh advised me that his engineer had still not turned up and he would
call him now. | also explained the council had not received a vary DPS application.
Salar Henareh insisted that he had submitted an application.

| made checks with our Premises Licensing team, and it transpired Salar Henareh
had only submitted a DPS consent form, not an application to change the DPS and
had therefore being operating without a DPS; a breach of mandatory condition
making the sale of alcohol unauthorised. | followed up an email to Salar Henareh
explaining this & requesting further CCTV due to out of hours activities being
witnessed by LOOH officers on the 4" November 2023. | exhibit the email as
GH13.

On the 7" November 2023 | was made aware by our Premises Licensing team that
the vary DPS application had been submitted on the 6™ January, however it
rejected again due to errors on the form.

On the 8" November 2023 | emailed Salar Henareh chasing the CCTV footage
and asking if alcohol sales had recommenced. | received no response. | exhibit the
email as GH14.

On the 11" November 2023 | visited the premises at 2202 hours and completed
external observations. | noted the premises still open with what | believe to be
customers leaving the premises. The premises licence permits opening hours until
2130 hours.

On the 15" November | emailed Salar Henareh to arrange to meet at the premises
following Majid Mirzaeian's appointment as DPS on the 10" November 2023,and
to chase the CCTV footage. | received no response. | exhibit the email as GH15.

Page 80



Appendix 9, Item 4

| called Salar Henareh on the 17" November 2023 and left a voicemail regarding
this. | contacted Majid Mirzaeian next and arranged to meet the following day at
5.30pm before Majid Mirzaeian started his shift at 7pm.

On the 18" November 2023 | arrived at Sky Lounge at 1745 hours with my
colleague Gareth Hall. We sat at the rear of the premises with Majid Mirzaeian and
Salar Henareh. Salar Henareh advised me that we had to be quick as Majid
Mirzaeian was busy serving customers and instructed Majid Mirzaeian to sit on the
outside of the booth so that he could serve customers. | explained to Salar
Henareh that | was there to meet Majid Mirzaeian and that it should only take 15
minutes. Salar Henareh responded that they were busy, | looked around the
premises at this point and noted the premises was very quiet. | explained to Salar
Henareh we had pre-arranged to meet at this time as Majid Mirzaeian had advised
me that he was starting work at 7pm. Salar Henareh responded that he had to start
early as they were busy.

| asked Majid Mirzaeian multiple questions about his employment, and he
confirmed to me the following information:

-He had started working at the premises on the 4" November 2023.

-He is not a manager and that he is currently training up as staff. He could not
confirm how many hours he was working at the premises at that moment. Salar
Henareh then advised that it would be 42 hours in time.

- He confirmed he oversees alcohol sales and takes the lead on checking for ID
and dealing with people who may have consumed too much alcohol. He confirmed
he will be responsible for providing staff training around alcohol sales.

-He has recently sold the _in Chorlton.

-He confirmed he had not read the licence and | advised him to do so.

| addressed the issue of closure time and explained to Salar Henareh & Majid
Mirzaeian that we had witnessed this being breached regularly. Salar Henareh
responded that he was responsible for the closing time not Majid Mirzaeian. |
explained to them both that the opening hours are a condition of the licence and
must be adhered to. | continued explaining that that Salar Henareh had proposed
that closure time to the committee. | added that we still needed a variation
application for plan change. Salar Henareh advised me this was submitted weeks
ago, | explained | had not received a copy, and that | would check this with our
Premises Licensing team.

| briefly discussed conditions of the licence with Majid Mirzaeian. | explained that
on the way in we could see a customer smoking shisha and drinking in the
designated smoking area, in breach of a licence condition. Both Salar Henareh &
Majid Mirzaeian responded ‘no there isn't’. | reiterated there was on our entry and
advised them to watch their CCTV which would show this.

Signed... - .........
Dated......... LR nmmes i

Page 81



Appendix 9, Item 4

| then mentioned the CCTV request | had made and explained this condition is
currently in breach as footage had still not been provided. | asked Salar Henareh
where the footage was | had requested, and he responded that he was awaiting
permission from customers if they are happy for us to have it, adding some
customers wouldn't want images of their wife shared and this was down to religion.
| explained this leaves him in breach of his condition, he responded ‘it doesn't’. |
advised we would invite him in a PACE interview regarding this continued breach
and that he risked having his licence reviewed.

On the 19" November 2023 | sent a follow up email to Salar Henareh explaining
that we intended to apply for a review of the licence and urging him to comply with
the Premises Licence. | exhibit this email as GH16.

On the 20" November 2023 | received an email from our Premises Licensing team
copying me into an email to Salar Henareh chasing him to submit a floor plan
change. | exhibit this as GH17.

On the 27" November 2023 | checked with Premises Licensing, and it was
confirmed an application to amend the floor plan had not been received.

On the 29" November 2023 | submitted a review application to the Premises
Licensing team and emailed a copy to Salar Henareh, | exhibit the email as GH18.

At 1347 hours | received a call male who identified himself as || GcININING
of Salar Henareh who had attended the committee hearing on the 18" September
2023 with him. He told me that it is very hard getting customers to leave at the
close of business and that Salar Henareh believed last orders was at 2130 hours. |
explained that in the committee hearing on the 18" September, Salar Henareh
proposed that last orders for food would be 2045 hours and closed for 2130 hours,
so it's difficult to understand how he doesn't understand this, as it was his

proposal. He asked what Salar Henareh could do now, and | explained he needed
to comply with the licence and to provide CCTV footage |jjjjjjjipdvised me ‘Irani
people don't like sharing CCTV footage'.

| visited Sky Lounge at 1640 on the same day with my colleague Gareth Hall.
Before entering the premises, | noted receipt of an email from Salar Henareh
which | exhibit as GH19.

Salar came forward to meet us in the premises and showed us a copy of his
Personal Licence now granted with Salford Council. He also advised me that Majid
Mirzaeian the DPS was leaving the business in mid-December. | explained | was
handing him a hard copy of the review application and that | would be displaying
public notices on his premises which must be displayed for 28 days. | explained
Premises Licensing would advise him of the committee hearing date.

Dated: -

Signed: ...7/1/24.....

Page 82



Appendix 9, Item 4

| explained to Salar Henareh | had just briefly seen his email and | responded to
this whilst we were talking, which | exhibit as GH20.

Salar Henareh then advised me ‘No that’s not good enough, | will send you
footage if you provide written reassurance that you are responsible if my
customers complain’. | explained to Salar Henareh that he should display CCTV
signs to make his customers aware and directed him towards the ICO website.
Salar Henareh advised me that he thought | was causing the problems, and |
explained he would have chance to put his side of things to the committee. Salar
Henareh then sent me a follow up email, which | exhibit as GH21.

After leaving the premises | emailed Salar Henareh advising unhappy customers
could be directed to myself and | could explain the use of the footage. | exhibit this
email as GH22.

Later than night | received an email from Salar Henareh in response to my email
exhibited as GH16, which | exhibit as GH23.

On the same evening | received a further email from Salar Henareh regarding
footage, saying again | would get the footage once he had permission from
unhappy customers. In this email Salar Henareh also acknowledged his
responsibilities with regards to CCTV and confirmed he would visit the ICO website
to familiarise himself. | exhibit this as GH24 & my response as GH25.

On the 30" November 2023 | received a complaint regarding | G

employee of the premises who advised mejjii GGG

| made contact with -on the 30" November 2023 and she advised me

Dated:

Signed: ... H124......nnvain

Page 83



Appendix 9, Item 4

Following this conversation, | emailed Salar Henareh with a further request for
CCTV footage, for the 14" & 15" November so that | could further investigate the
allegations. | exhibit the email as GH26.

On the 1%t December 2023 | drove by the premises and could see that the blue
public notices had been taken down off the premises, along with Salar Henareh's
car parked on double yellow lines and partially on the pavement outside the
premises. | returned at approx. 1645 hours to replace the public notices with my
colleague Gareth Hall.

Whilst replacing the notices Salar Henareh came out and invited Gareth Hall & |
both in for coffee, which we politely refused. | heard Gareth Hall ask what had
happened to the notices and | heard Salar Henareh respond that he didn’t know
how they'd been taken down. | explained his CCTV camera covered where the
Aldermary Road notice had been displayed and pointed to the camera covering it.
Salar Henareh responded that the CCTV cameras were not for that purpose and
refused to provide footage.

| said to Salar Henareh, whilst we were there, we could collect the CCTV
requested on email. Salar Henareh advised me ‘you need to write a letter stating
you will deal with customer complaints, you are responsible’ | responded to Salar
Henareh that | had written an email to him stating this already. Salar Henareh said
to me ‘no, you need to be responsible for their complaint.’ | responded explaining
that as he was clearly not going to provide the footage, we will leave this for the
committee hearing. | said goodbye and walked away.

Salar Henareh called me back over and said to me ‘you will be hearing from my
solicitor about your conduct’, | asked ‘what do you mean?’ and he said ‘I'm not
telling you, you will hear from my solicitor’, so | walked away again.

o

Signed: ....7/1/24.......

Page 84



Appendix 9, Item 4

Salar Henareh then called me back again and said to me ‘Gemma you are barred
from the premises’, | asked him ‘why’ and he replied ‘because you are racist’.

| explained to Salar Henareh that | have a right of entry to the premises under
S179 of the Licensing Act and he responded ‘no, only your barred not Gareth'. |
left again at this point.

On the 5" December 2023 | drove by the premises and could see the public
notices had been taken down again. | put a new notice on a lamppost (68) near
237 Barlow Moor Road and on the right-hand side of the premises on railings
facing near MCD Manchester Ltd.

On the 10" December 2023 | picked up a new complaint from a new address, who

Sky Lounge. The customer advised they had been
disturbed by loud music on the 6t leading into the 7!" of December until approx.
0015 hours. The complainant also advised that they had been disturbed on
multiple occasions prior to this, including the 315t October 2023, relating to loud
music, voices, clamping & stamping and that this occurred both in licensable hours
and outside of permitted hours.

On the 12" December 2023 | spoke with PC Alan Isherwood in Greater
Manchester Police and asked him for assistance in retrieving CCTV footage from
Sky Lounge. | was subsequently copied into this request from GMP to the
premises, and noted a refusal of the footage stating that females where on images
without their hijabs and Salar Henareh stated that he been having problems with
the camera since last week. | responded to this email and provide the email trail as
exhibit GH27.

On the 12" December 2023 | was driving by the premises and noticed the public
notices have been removed again. | placed a new notice on lamppost 68 again.

On the 20t December 2023 a new shareholder of the business contacted me to
introduce herself as N | 2'so received contact from ||| G

from || <xr'aining that she had been asked to legally represent
the premises.

Mrequested an extension of hours for the 315t December 2023. |
exhibit the email trail as GH28.
Dated: -

Signed: ...7/1/24...........

Page 85



Appendix 9, Item 4

On the 22" December 2023 N - ¢ to council offices to have a
meeting with both Gareth Hall & myself regarding the problems at Sky Lounge.

I - - ained her intention was to straighten the premises out and
ensure it was compliant. || | | - Viscd me she was aware of the
problems with management and knew they are operating out of hours as she had
seen this herself.

On the 28" December 2023 | received an email from ||l xp'aining that
both & herself had parted ways with Sky Lounge as the licence
continued to be in breach and advised that they could not work constructively with
the management. | exhibit this email as GH29.

On the 3™ January 2024 | reviewed the case and the visits that had been made
over December 2023 by LOOH officers which identified further out of hours
activities. | made a further request for CCTV footage which | exhibit as GH30.

On the 5" January 2024 | viewed the premises website: https://sky-lounge.co.uk
| could see that underneath the offering of shisha there was a note saying: 'one
shisha between the two, everyone must buy a drink. During busy hours max 1.5
hours stay’. This could lead to a breach of annex 3 condition 3:

‘no drinks shall be taken outside in the designated smoking area’,

And Annex 2 Condition 8:

‘alcohol shall be served only with purchased foods and at tables served by
staff’.

| exhibit the web pages as GH31.

As of todays date, no CCTV footage has been provided to the LOOH team.

The facts and matters set out in this statement were compiled from documents
held by the Authority. The documents to which | have referred form part of the
Authority’s records maintained in the course of its profession. These records were
compiled by people who had or may reasonably be supposed to have had,
personal knowledge of the matters dealt with in the course of their profession but
of which those people cannot reasonably be expected, to have recollection of
those matters having regard to the time which has elapsed since they created the
document and to all the relevant circumstances

Signed: 7/1/24..............

Formerly form 13, Magistrates’ Courts’ (Forms) Rules 1981 (Sl 1981/5653), relating
to rule 70 of the Magistrates’ Courts Rules 1981, section 9 of the Criminal Justice
Act 1967 and section 5B of the Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980.

Page 86



Appendix 9, Item 4

Witness Statements
(Criminal Procedure Rules, Part 27)

Statement of witness

(Criminal Procedure Rules, r27.1 (1);
Criminal Justice Act 1967, s.9, Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B)

STATEMENT OF Gareth Hall
Age of witness: Over 18
Occupation of witness: Compliance Officer

This statement consisting of 6 pages, each signed by me and is true to the best of
my knowledge and belief and | make it knowing that, if tendered in evidence, | shall
be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated in it anything, which | know to be
false or do not believe to be true.

| am employed by Manchester City Council within the Licensing and Out of Hours
Team (LOOHT) as a compliance officer. | am authorised to carry out enforcement
of Licensing Act 2003, section 136, in relation to the offence of unauthorised
activities.

On Wednesday 1%t November 2023 at 1607 Hrs | accompanied my colleague
Gemma Hunt to 241 Barlow Moor Road a premises trading as Sky Lounge. Upon
entering the premises | noted that there was no summary of the premises licence
on display,as required by the Licensing Act 2003 | also noted that there were no
signs displayed as required by the Health Act 2006.

At 1610 Hrs Gemma Hunt and myself were joined by | NG o
identified himself as the | N ER state that he had applied for
a personal licence froquouncil and has booked on to do his training. He
also confirmed that the premises had been open for a week and that the DPS had
been on the premises today as he had seen them. |} I confirmed he
had not applied for a personal licence but had booked on a course to gain the
qualification required to obtain a personal licence. Number of Covers counted on
the ground floor of the premises as 56

At 1618 Hrs Gemma Hunt, | NI d myself moved to the upstairs of the
premises and counted the number of covers as 45. | again noted that there was no
summary of the premises licence on display and there we no ‘no smoking’ signs
displayed. The upstairs was set out with tables and chairs and the tables set with
cutlery, glassware and napkins, there was also a fully stocked bar. Gemma Hunt

asked | this area was used by customers, | N

stated the upstairs was never in use for customers.

At 1622 Hrs | was checking the male toilets upstairs for cleanliness and signs of
drug use at the direction of Gemma Hunt, when | returned having left my notebook

Dated: 2 Jaw o 205

Page 87



Appendix 9, Item 4

open on a table | found _taking a photograph of my notes with a
mobile phone. | challenged ||l who smirked and denied taking a
photograph of my notes showing me his phone and the photographs on it that did

not include photographs of my notebook. | again challengedﬂ
stating | had seen him take the photograph, | got no response. | aske

I hc had messaged the photograph to someone, again got no response.

At 1623 Gemma Hunt, and | returned to the ground floor of the

restaurant and sat at a round table in front of the bar area. A male member of staff
approached us and identified himself as | 2t this point
interjected and told the male he wasn't and he wasn'’t allowed to speak

to us._stated that a manager was on their way.

At 1650 a female who identified herself as_
_appears in the premises and again states the manager Is on their way.
At 1655 Hrs a female came to the restaurant and was introduced to us as | KGczHG

manager and will be the DPS, Gemma Hunt asks
the following questions:-

1) Do you have a personal licence? Reply No

2) Have you done the training course
And gained the qualification to hold a personal licence?
reply Yes, | am waiting for the council to grant my personal licence.

3) Can you provide proof you have passed? What score did you get? Answer
37140

At 1659 Gemma Hunt Caution_in accordance with
Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1982. GGG cofirms they
have only applied for a personal licence and doe not currently hold one, that they
do not work at the premises but will once they have been granted a personal

licence that they occasionally help NG

Gemma Hunt then explains to _that the premises does not currently
have a personal licence holder on the premises in line with conditions on the
licnece and that no one was aware who the DPS was staff did not have the
authority to sell alcohol. | advised N that all the alcohol be removed
from display to prevent s136 Licensing Act 2003 offences being committed.

At 1713 after | repeat my request several times the alcohol is taken off display at
the downstairs bar. | then issue an FPN for the breach of the Health Act 2006 to
the DPS and leave it at the premises witl-l then leave the premises with
my colleague Gemma Hunt.

On 3" November 2023 | accompanied my colleague Gemma Hunt on a visit to the
premises to discuss the visit on the 15! November 2023. We met Salar Henareh the
premises licence holder and conducted the meeting on the first floor. Gemma Hunt
opened the meeting by advising Salar Henareh that in the first instance we would
work with him to rectify the breaches of the premises licence and other issues
found during the recent visit, however it relied on him being open and honest with

Dated: 7. Svrnouq ry QO

Signhed

Page 88



Appendix 9, Item 4

us so that issues would be rectified expediently and efficiently. Gemma then went
through the premises licence with Salar Henareh, Gemma asked Salar Henareh if
the sale of alcohol had been restarted, Salar Henareh answered that it hadn’t
because he had sacked the DPS due to them causing issues by leaving the
premises unattended during the visit on the 15t November 2023. Salar Henareh
stated that he'd had employed a new manager ‘Majid’ who held a personal licence
and that he planned to recommence alcohol sales on the premises on Saturday 4t
November 2023. Gemma Hunt advised Salar Henareh that he would need to
submit a vary DPS application and text a link Salar Henareh to do so online.

Gemma Hunt then asked Salar Henareh what days the sacked DPS had worked at
the premises. Salar Henareh stated they had worked Thursday and Friday last
week, then Monday, Tuesday, Friday and Saturday this week.

Gemma Hunt then raised noise complaints that had been received from local
residents that nuisance was happening until 2300 Hrs, further explaining that one
event was reported at Halloween. Salar Henareh confirmed that there had been an
event on Halloween however all customers had left the premises by 2145Hrs.
Salar Henareh denied there had been a DJ at the event and that the volume of
music played had been within 69 Db as agreed with the council. Gemma Hunt
stated that there had been no levels agreed by Manchester City Council and
explained how LOH assess noise nuisance and that the method of construction of
the outside area and the lack of an acoustic lobby would mean that it was highly
likely any further events where amplified music was played would lead to a noise
nuisance.

Salar Henareh’s response was that this was not his first business and ‘he knew
how to deal with neighbours who complained’. He also stated he had set levels
and then wanted to know how to complain about residents but did not elaborate
what he would be complaining about in relation to them.

At 1745HTrs on the 18" November 2023 | accompanied my colleague Gemma Hunt
on a further visit to Sky Lounge, 241 Barlow Moor Road. Gemma Hunt and | were
joined by Salar Henareh the premises licence holder and Majid Mirzaeian the New
DPS, we all sat around a table at the rear of the premises. Salar Henareh stated
that we had to be quick as Majid was busy serving customers and instructed Majid
Mirzaeian to sit on the outside of the booth so that he could serve customers.
Gemma explained to Salar Henareh that the purpose of the meeting was to meet
Maijid Mirzaeian and that it should only take a short time. Salar Henareh responded
that they were busy, | looked around the premises and noted the premises was
very quiet. Gemma Hunt stated that the meeting had been pre-arranged to meet at
this time as Majid Mirzaeian had advised he was starting work at 7pm. Salar
Henareh replied to Gemma Hunt stating that he had to start early as they were
busy. Gemma Hunt asked Majid Mirzaeian questions about his employment at the
premises and he confirmed the following information:

- Majid Mirzaeian started working at the premises on the 4" November.

- Majid Mirzaeian advised he is not a manager and that he is currently training up
as staff. He

Dated: 7™ JWnQAR—~/ SCD

Page 89



Appendix 9, Item 4

could not confirm how many hours he was working at the premises at that
moment. Salar Henareh advised that it would be 42 hours in time.

- Majid Mirzaeian confirmed he overseas alcohol sales and takes the lead on
checking for ID and dealing with people who may have consumed too much
alcohol. He confirmed he will be responsible for providing staff training relating to
sale of alcohol.

- Majid Mirzaeian has recently sold th-in Chorlton.

- Majid Mirzaeian confirmed he had not read the licence.

- Majid Mirzaeian confirmed he overseas alcohol sales and takes the lead on
checking for ID and dealing with people who may have consumed too much
alcohol. He confirmed he will be responsible for providing staff training around
alcohol sales.

- Majid Mirzaeian has recently sold th-n Chorlton.

- Majid Mirzaeian confirmed he had not read the licence and | advised him to do
SO.

Gemma addressed the issue of closure time and explained LOH Officers had
witnessed this being breached regularly. Salar Henareh responded that he was
responsible for the closing time. Gemma explained to Salar Henareh & Maijid
Mirzaeian that the opening hours are a condition of the licence and must be
adhered too, further adding that Salar Henareh had proposed that closure time to
the committee. | added that we still needed a variation application for plan change.
Salar Henareh stated that a variation was submitted weeks ago, Gemma Hunt
explained that this would check this with premises licensing, as no variation had
been received by LOH.

Gemma Hunt highlighted conditions on the premises licence with Majid Mirzaeian,
that a Personal Licence Holder to on site at all times, an SIA condition for bookings
of more than 20 customers, and conditions relating to the designated smoking
area. Gemma Hunt explained that on the way in we could both see a customer
drinking and smoking in the outside area they both denied this so we advised them
to watch their CCTV.

Gemma Hunt mentioned the CCTV requests made and explained that he was in
breach of his premises licence as footage had not been provided. Salar Henareh
stated that he was awaiting permission from customers if they are happy for us to
have it, some customers wouldn’t want images of their wife shared. Gemma
explained this leaves him in breach of his condition, Salar Henareh insisted it
doesn'’t. At this point Gemma stopped the visit and advised Salar Henareh he
would invited in for PACE interview regarding this.

Gemma asked Salar Henareh if the shisha pipe we had seen in use in the outside
area on our way in outside was electronic, Salar Henareh said it was not. | asked

Dated: 7™ Zanuans oo
Signe

Page 90



Appendix 9, Item 4

to confirm that the pipe | had seen in use was operated via hot coals Salah
confirmed it was. Upon leaving the premises the shisha pipe was still on the table
however unattended it appeared to be an electronic or ‘vape type’ shisha pipe, |
took a photograph of said pip ‘exhibit GR01 refers’.

On 29 November 2023 | accompanied my colleague Gemma Hunt to the
premises trading as ‘Sky Lounge’ 241 Barlow Moor Road, in order that a copy of
the review application be given to Salar Henareh. Salar Henareh met us in the
premises and provided his personal licence issued by Salford City Council. Salar
Henareh stated that Majid the DPS would be leaving the business mid December.
Gemma Hunt gave Salar Henareh a hard copy of the review application advising
him that the document was the review application and that public notices would be
displayed on his premises which would need to stay in place for 28 days. Gemma
then explained that she had responded to his earlier email. Salar Henareh retorted
‘that’s not good enough, | will send you footage when you provide written
assurance that you are responsible for my customers complaints’. Gemma Hunt
explained that he should display a notice explaining to customers that CCTV is
recording and directed him to the ICO website. Salar Henareh stated that he
thought ‘you were causing problems’ directed to my colleague Gemma Hunt who
replied that he would have an opportunity to present his side of event to the
licensing committee at the hearing. Gemma Hunt and | then affixed the notices to
the premises ‘exhibits GR02 and GRO3 refer’ and left the area.

At 1645 Hrs On December 1%t 2023 | accompanied my colleague Gemma Hunt to
replace the ‘blue notices' advertising the review of the premises that had been
removed. Whilst putting up the new notices ‘exhibits GR04, GR0O5 AND GR06
refer’ Salar Henareh came to the gate to the premises and invited Gemma Hunt
and myself in for a cup of coffee which was politely refused. | asked Salar Henareh
if he knew what had happened to the blue notices, Salar Henareh replied that he
didn’t. Gemma Hunt stated that one of his CCTV cameras covered the area the
notice had been on Aldermary Road. Salar Henareh retorted ‘the cameras are not
for that purpose’ | replied that ‘it would be appreciated if he could have a look'’
Salar Henareh gave no response. Gemma Hunt asked if we could pick up the
CCTV previously requested as we were at the premises. Salar Henareh retorted
‘you need to write a letter stating you will deal with customer complaints, you are
responsible’. Gemma Hunt replied that ‘ | have in my emails’ Salar Henareh
retorted ‘NO, you need to be responsible for their complaint’. Gemma Hunt replied
that ‘as he was not going to provide the footage, it would be left for the committee
hearing’ said goodbye we then walked away to the car. As we got to the other side
of the road to the premises Salar Henareh called Gemma Hunt back we
approached Salar Henareh who then said ‘you will be hearing from my solicitor
about your conduct’ when asked to elaborate by Gemma Hunt, Salar Henareh
retorted ‘' | am not telling you, you will hear from my solicitor' again we walked off
towards the car, as we got to the car Salar Henareh again called Gemma Hunt
back, once we were a few feet away from him Salar Henareh said * Gemma you
are barred form the premises’ Gemma Hunt asked ‘why?’ Salar Henareh retorted
‘you're racist’ Gemma Hunt explained that under s179 of the Licensing Act 2003
officers had a

Dated: 2%

T 2

Signhe

Page 91



Appendix 9, Item 4

right of entry to the premises. right of entry to the premises. Salar Henareh again
retorted ‘no, only you are again retorted ‘no, only you are barred not Gareth’. At
this point we walked away back to the car and left the area.

On December 22" 2023 | was present at a meeting between Gemma Hunt and

- ained that she had invested in the
premises and her intention was to reform the premises and ensure it was
compliant. stated that she was aware of problems with the
management of the premises as she had witnessed them herself such as
operating out of hours. then gave the following example she had
tried to address the issue by placing a sign in the staff area displaying the
operating hours another partner in the business ripped them down.

Dated: 7% JWovaRy 2092¢

Formerly form 13, Magistrates’ Courts’ (Forms) Rules 1981 (S| 1981/553), relating
to rule 70 of the Magistrates’ Courts Rules 1981, section 9 of the Criminal Justice
Act 1967 and section 5B of the Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980.

Page 92



Appendix 9, Item 4

Witnhess Statements
(Criminal Procedure Rules, Part 27)

Statement of witnhess

(Criminal Procedure Rules, r27.1 (1);
Criminal Justice Act 1967, s.9, Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B)

STATEMENT OF Margaret Lewis
Age of witness: Over 18
Occupation of witness: Compliance Officer

This statement consisting of 2 pages, each signed by me and is true to the best of
my knowledge and belief and | make it knowing that, if tendered in evidence, | shall
be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated in it anything, which | know to be
false or do not believe to be true.

| am employed by Manchester City Council as a Compliance Officer. Parts of my
duties include the enforcement of Licensing Act 2003, section 136, in relation to
the offence of unauthorised activities.

On 7 November 2023, at 20:30 while carrying out my duties, | visited the Sky
Lounge at 241 Barlow Moor Road. On arrival as | entered, | observed alcohol
being poured from a wine bottle for customers at a table in the frontmost part of the
premises, when entered the main area | also observed alcohol on display.

| introduced myself as being an officer from Manchester City Council and asked for
the person in charge, | was met by Salar the licensee. As | know that a licensed
premises can not trade selling alcohol with no designated premises supervisor
(DPS), | enquired who was the current DPS, Salar was able to show me an email
from our Premises licensing team, acknowledging receipt of a DPS variation at
14:02 that day. On receipt of a valid and complete DPS variation, this takes effect
immediately. | enquired as to whether he was sure it was completed correctly as
previously it had not been. He gave assurances that it had.

| conducted some other standard checks on the premises, there was signage for
Challenge 25, and the summary was on display.

There were no, no smoking signs Salar was able to show an email to say delivery
was 8pm today, it was already gone 8pm. There were no running men signs
visible if seated or stood anywhere in the premises, save for the small toilet area
which was through a door. The fire extinguisher which Salar confirmed was
already at the premises when they got it had no service detail label on it | advised
of the need to get it serviced and tested. | asked if a fire risk assessment had
been completed Salar stated one had been done looked for it but not able to show
officer any evidence of any form that one had been done.

Dated: 28 November 2023

Page 93



Appendix 9, Item 4

After checks were completed Salar advised officer that he had instructed a
Solicitor as he was not, pleased with the number of visits they had received from
our team. | advised Salar that they were a new premises and visit are common to
ensure they are abiding to the conditions on the licence and upholding the
licensing objectives and if we come and find breaches, then we will give advice
and continue to visit to ensure compliance.

On leaving the premises | observed a male seated smoking shisha at the side area
attached to the premises, which was substantially enclosed.

Dated: 28 November 2023

Formerly form 13, Magistrates’ Courts’ (Forms) Rules 1981 (Sl 1981/553), relating
to rule 70 of the Magistrates’ Courts Rules 1981, section 9 of the Criminal Justice
Act 1967 and section 5B of the Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980.

Page 94



Appendix 9, Item 4

Witness Statements
(Criminal Procedure Rules, Part 27)

Statement of withess

(Criminal Procedure Rules, r27.1 (1);
Criminal Justice Act 1967, s.9, Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B)

STATEMENT OF Sion Roberts
Age of witness: Over 18
Occupation of witness: Compliance Officer

This statement consisting of 2 pages, each signed by me and is true to the best of
my knowledge and belief and | make it knowing that, if tendered in evidence, | shall
be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated in it anything, which | know to be
false or do not believe to be true.

| am employed by Manchester City Council within the Licensing and Out of Hours
Team (LOOHT) as a compliance officer. | am authorised to carry out enforcement
of Licensing Act 2003, section 136, in relation to the offence of unauthorised
activities.

On 18! October 2023, at 21:30 whilst carrying out my duties, Myself and Nathan
Mistry also an authorised officer from the LOOHT team, visited the Sky Lounge at
241 Barlow Moor Road. We positioned our works van on Aldermary road, opposite
the premise, on the pavement facing Barlow Moor Road. It was approx10 metres.
In this position only | had the ability to observe the premises.

Although partly obscured by decorations around the main entrance doorway, six
occupiers appeared to be sat in the front covered area facing Barlow Moor Road.

Several occupiers were also seen at this time going up and down the internal stairs
to the upper area. This area was not completely visible; and as such the total
numbers of occupiers in this area could not be confirmed.

At 21.40 a couple and a child left the premises from inside the restaurant area.

At 21.42 what appeared to be staff were observed lighting an ornamental
freestanding flame heater in the small side substantially covered area. As this had
finished a couple moved from the front covered area of the restaurant into this
smaller side area.

The female of the couple began to what appeared to be smoke shisha as clouds of
smoke were observed being blown out from her mouth after inhaling off a long
flexible pipe. The Shisha pipe apparatus and coals could not be seen from our
location. The female of the couple then also began to drink what appeared to be a
drink of tea of coffee, poured from a tea pot or coffee pot.

Dated: 29" November 2023

signeq: | NN

Page 95



Appendix 9, Item 4

At 21.48 five occupiers were still in front covered area talking and the one male
facing my direction appeared to be eating.

At 21.53 the same male appeared to drink what looked like a clear liquid from a
large wine style glass. At the same time, another couple with their child moved
from the front covered area facing Barlow moor road, to side substantially
enclosed area where the previous couple were still located, smoking shisha.

At 22.00 As | was finishing my observations 1 staff member was observed seen
leaving in car. The premises was still open to customers as | left to attend another
job.

Dated: 29" November 2023

signeo: [ NN NEEE

Formerly form 13, Magistrates’ Courts’ (Forms) Rules 1981 (S| 1981/553), relating
to rule 70 of the Magistrates’ Courts Rules 1981, section 9 of the Criminal Justice
Act 1967 and section 5B of the Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980.

Page 96



Appendix 9, Item 4

Witness Statements
(Criminal Procedure Rules, Part 27)

Statement of witness

(Criminal Procedure Rules, r27.1 (1);
Criminal Justice Act 1967, s.9, Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B)

STATEMENT OF Wayne Adams
Age of witness: Over 18
Occupation of witness: Licensing and Out of Hours Officer

This statement consisting of 1 page, signed by me and is true to the best of my
knowledge and belief and | make it knowing that, if tendered in evidence, | shall be
liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated in it anything, which | know to be false
or do not believe to be true.

| am employed by Manchester City Council as a Licensing and Out of Hours
Officer. Parts of my duties include the enforcement of the Licensing Act 2003,
section 136, in relation to the offence of unauthorised activities.

On Wednesday 8 November 2023 at 2140hrs, Pauline Gregory, my colleague from
Licensing and Out of Hours and [, arrived at Sky Lounge, 241 Barlow Moor Road,
Manchester, M21 7QL to assess for unauthorised activities. When we arrived at
the premises, we parked adjacent to the property so that we could have a clear
line of sight of any patrons and staff within the venue. At the time | counted
approximately 10 patrons within the premises who were in the process of dining, |
also counted approximately 5 members of staff. | cannot confirm the exact
numbers of patrons or staff as | did not have a clear view of all areas of the venue.

At 2146hrs, Pauline and | made the decision to attempt a test purchase of food
and alcohol by entering the premises under the guise of paying customers. We did
this to confirm if any unauthorised activities were taking place after 2130hrs. As we
entered the premises a member of staff came up to us and stated that “they closed
at nine thirty” and as such we were unable to purchase food or alcohol. This
confirmed, we made are way back to our vehicle and proceeded to leave the area.

Dated: 8 December 2023

Signed:-

Formerly form 13, Magistrates’ Courts’ (Forms) Rules 1981 (S| 1981/553), relating
to rule 70 of the Magistrates’ Courts Rules 1981, section 9 of the Criminal Justice
Act 1967 and section 5B of the Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980.

Page 97



Appendix 9, Item 4

Witness Statements
(Criminal Procedure Rules, Part 27)

Statement of witnhess

(Criminal Procedure Rules, r27.1 (1);
Criminal Justice Act 1967, s.9, Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B)

STATEMENT OF Steven Titterton
Age of withess: Over 18
Occupation of witness: Compliance Officer

This statement consisting of 2 pages, each signed by me and is true to the best of
my knowledge and belief and | make it knowing that, if tendered in evidence, | shall
be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated in it anything, which | know to be
false or do not believe to be true.

| am employed by Manchester City Council as a Compliance Officer. Parts of my
duties include the enforcement of Licensing Act 2003, section 136, in relation to
the offence of unauthorised activities.

On 4" November 2023 | was asked to visited Sky Lounge, 241 Barlow Moor Road,
Chorlton, Manchester by the Gemma Hunt also a Compliance Officer in the
Licensning and Out of Hours Team to check if the premise was still open, if Majid
Mirziean the designated premise supervisor was present, were there any noise
issues and if anyone had alcohol drinks in the ouside smoking area.

| entered the premise at 21.27 and there were 6 tables in use, Outside smoking
area was empty. | Approached the bar area, Salar introduced himself and shown
us a copy of a level 2 certificate on his phone and he said he was just waiting

for his personal ID card to be provided. he also shown me a screenshot of the
MCC website which shown he has applied to transfer the DPS. He claimed Majid
Mirziean was on site, but he did not appear to speak to us. Whilst we were stood
talking to Salar a male brought a plate of food out of the kitchen area and took it to
one of the tables, after 21:30.

We left at 21:35 and customers were still sat at tables in the conservative area to
the front of the premise.

Dated: 5" December 2023

Signed: -

Page 98



Appendix 9, Item 4

At 22.05 we drove passed the premise and people were still sat at tables in the
front section. No noise issues noted at either visit.

Dated: 5t December 2023

Signed: -

Formerly form 13, Magistrates’ Courts’ (Forms) Rules 1981 (SI 1981/5653), relating
to rule 70 of the Magistrates’ Courts Rules 1981, section 9 of the Criminal Justice
Act 1967 and section 5B of the Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980.

Page 99



Appendix 9, Item 4

Witness Statements
(Criminal Procedure Rules, Part 27)

Statement of witness

(Criminal Procedure Rules, r27.1 (1);
Criminal Justice Act 1967, s.9, Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B)

STATEMENT OF Paul Bonner
Age of witness: Over 18
Occupation of witness: Licensing out of hours officer

This statement consisting of 1 page, each signed by me and is true to the best of my
knowledge and belief and | make it knowing that, if tendered in evidence, | shall be liable
to prosecution if | have wilfully stated in it anything, which | know to be false or do not
believe to be true.

I am employed by Manchester City Council as a licensing out of hours officer. Part of my
duties is to attend callouts in relation to noise nuisance and to observe premises that may
be in breach of their license conditions.

On Monday 18" December 2023 at 22.02 we received a call from a complainant to report
that the noise from Sky Lounge was excessive and would like for us to attend her property
to witness it. We arrived at the complainant’s property at 22.42 which was next to the Sky
Lounge and observed customers leaving the premises, we didn’'t observe any music. |
rang the complainant who confirmed that the music had just stopped before out arrival. |
explained that we had observed customers leaving and the premises looked to be closing
but if the noise was to start up again, she could ring the service and we would attend

On 31% December 2023 at 21.55 we were on Barlow Moor Road, Chorlton when we
observed the Sky Lounge was operating past their licensable hours. | stood the other side
of the road from the Sky Lounge which is approx. 20 meters away and observed quite a lot
of customers seated receiving food. | took three images which | exhibit as PB01, PB02
and PBO3. | could see drinks also being delivered to the tables. | had a walk around the
premises and at the left hand side of the premises a table of 4 were smoking shisha.

| didn't take any further images due to staff and customers watching me. | returned to the
van and we stayed for a further 10 minutes, | could see food still being delivered from the
kitchen, drinks being delivered and waiting staff taking orders. It didn't look like it was due
to close anytime soon.

The facts and matters set out in this statement were compiled from documents held by the
Authority. The documents to which | have referred form part of the Authority’s records
maintained in the course of its profession. These records were compiled by people who
had or may reasonably be supposed to have had, personal knowledge of the matters dealt
with in the course of their profession but of which those people cannot reasonably be
expected, to have recollection of those matters having regard to the time which has
elapsed since they created the document and to all the relevant circumstance

Dated: 3 January 2024

Signed:

Page 100



Appendix 9, Item 4

Page 101



Appendix 9, Item 4

carbon filter would also be used and the premises would provide an outdoor odour

assessment.

The Legal advisor to the Hearing Panel addressed some points in the applicant’s

statement:

The applicant could bring the closing time forward to an earlier time but not do so
for the opening time and confirmed hours applied for as now being 11:00 to 21:30
— the applicant agreed

Regarding the live music act and deregulation, if the alcohol licence was granted
today, the applicant would not have to apply for this as it would be automatically
granted up to 23:00

Regarding traffic/planning issues, this was a separate regime to Licensing
procedure and these issues could not be considered by the Hearing Panel today

In responding to questions from the LOOH representative, the applicant stated that:

No shisha would be available at the premises

There was an area and policy for smokers

This was an outside open area with a wind breaker to assist with noise breakout
He was aware that smoking areas had to be 50% open air minimum

The side windows and roof can be drawn back by remote control to increase the
open air aspect

They had other restaurants, businesses and experienced managers/staff

He was to be the Managing Director with an office on the 3« floor

There was no business partner in this enterprise

The DPS would be on site full-time with a view to hiring others in the future to be
sure there was someone on site to handle any issues at all times

Yes, the DPS currently lives in Sheffield and would not be able to be on site 7
days a week. He would cover 3 to 4 days a week once the premises had hired
another member of management staff

The current DPS did not manage any other premises

The DPS would cover licensing training on underage alcohol refusals, reporting
thereof, safety, staff control and dealing with inebriated customers

Staff would not sell more alcohol to anyone already drunk and SIA registered
security would be provided if groups of 20 or more made a group booking

The outside capacity was 12 maximum and would close at 21:30

Alcohol would only be served with food, no person ordering alcohol only would be
served with a drink

Challenge 25 meant the premises had to provide signage throughout and was a
policy not to serve anyone under the age of 18

In responding to questions from Trading Standards, the applicant stated that:

Training would be delivered weekly with a full course every 6 months
They were happy to add Challenge 25 refusals to a log as part of additional
conditions

In responding to questions fro_the applicant stated that:

Page 102



Appendix 9, Item 4

Page 103



Appendix 9, Item 4

Page 104



Appendix 9, Item 4

The applicant asked Resident 1 whether children would be playing outside at 21:30 and
stated that the Barlow Moor Road was generally a busy road. Resident 1 stated that the

side of the premises ran along a residential street.

Resident 2 addressed the Hearing Panel and stated that the smoking area was not large

enough.

I s tha the

application required lots of teasing out of finer details that could have been provided in
the application and with earlier communication strategies. Regarding training, he would
have liked more information to be sure that the premises runs to regulations and in a
safe manner. Although the capacity had been reduced to 80, residents would still have
concerns for this residential, family area. The premises would still draw a large number
of customers arriving at similar times and this was not a sustainable location for public
transport. Regarding the comment about double yellow lines stopping parking issues,
one of the photographs provided showed a vehicle parked on the lines. I

-stated that he was attending on behalf of ||| R i suprort of officers

and neighbouring properties and businesses.

The applicant aske_ whether other nearby restaurants had caused

any problems._stated that the other properties had service roads at
the front and were further away from family houses. The applicant repeated his

questions, as he felt it was not directly answered._ stated that the

applicant’s property was in a different location and more likely to create noise and

disturbance.

_ responded to a question from the Hearing Panel, stating that the

reduced hours were helpful but there was still scope for problems and that he would

have liked to have seen a dispersal policy.

In summing up their presentation, LOOH stated that there were lots of welcome changes

from the applicant today but, if granted, there would still be teething problems. LOOH

Page 105



Appendix 9, Item 4

Page 106



Appendix 9, Item 4

Page 107



Appendix 9, Item 4

Page 108



Appendix 9, Item 4

Page 109



Appendix 9, Item 4

Hours premises are open to the public

Standard timings

Day Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun
Start 1100 1100 1100 1100 1100 1100 1100
Finish 2130 2130 2130 2130 2130 2130 2130
Seasonal variations and Non-standard Timings:

None

Part 2

Details of premises licence holder

Name: Mr Salar Henareh
Address:

Registered number: n/a

Details of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the
supply of alcohol

Name: Majid Mirzaeian
Address:

Personal Licence number: 283672

Issuing Authority: Manchester City Council

Annex 1 — Mandatory conditions

Door Supervisors

1.  Only individuals licensed by the Security Industry Authority shall be used at the
premises to undertake security activities, which include guarding against: -

(a) Unauthorised access or occupation (e.g. through door supervision),
(b) Outbreaks of disorder, or
(c) Damage,

unless otherwise entitled by virtue of section 4 of the Private Security Industry Act
2001 to carry out such activities.

Supply of alcohol

2. No supply of alcohol may be made under this premises licence:

(a) At a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the
premises licence or,

(b) At a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal
licence or his personal licence is suspended.

3. Every retail sale or supply of alcohol made under this licence must be made or
authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

4. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that
an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale

Page 2 of 7
Issued by:

Premises Licensing Team, PO Box 532, MBageetidr City Council, Manchester M60 2LA




Appendix 9, Item 4

Page 111



Appendix 9, Item 4

Page 112



Appendix 9, Item 4

Page 113



Appendix 9, Item 4

Page 114



Appendix 9, Item 4

Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 10, Item 4

Page 117



Appendix 10, ltem 4

GH5

Page 118



Appendix 10, Item 4

Page 119



Appendix 10@?[11{21?

ta. MANCHESTER
&' CITY COUNCIL

The Neighbourhoods Service
Neighbourhoods Directorate

Neighbourhood Compliance Team (South)
Manchester City Council

PO Box 532
The Owner or Owners Town Rall

Manchester
241 Barlow Moor Road

M60 2LA
Manchester
M21 7QL

To reply please contact:

Date; 215t February 2023

Our ref: 153841

Dear Sir / Madam
Legal Notice Attached under Section 4 of the Prevention of Damage by Pests Act 1949

Please read this letter carefully, as it contains information that affects your property as the
owner.

Re: 241 Barlow Moor Road, Manchester, M21 7QL

This land has been highlighted as a concern to Manchester City Council and local
communities. The site has been assessed and the accumulation of refuse could cause
harbourage or attraction to vermin or other pests. Please find photographs enclosed which
show the accumulation.

Attached is a notice under section 4 of the Prevention of Damage by Pests Act 1949 requiring
you to remedy these problems by 3 March 2023. | am sure that you will agree that swift and
prompt action is required on your part to clear this land and undertake the works specified
within the attached legal notice.

If you fail to comply with this notice, you will be committing a criminal offence, the penalty for
this being a fine of up to £1000 on summary conviction. The Council may also then proceed
to carry out the work required under the notice in default, and thereafter you will be recharged
the cost of these works in addition to any fine on prosecution for failure to comply with the
notice.

PLEASE ACT ON THIS NOTICE AND DO NOT IGNORE.

Yours sincerely,

Neighbourhood Compliance Officer
Page 120



Appendix 10, Item 4

Prevention of Damage by Pests NCS/153841(DB3)

Act 1949 Section 4
MANCHESTER
CITY COUNCIL

Section 4 Prevention of Damage by Pests Act 1949

NOTICE TO EXECUTE WORKS
IN ORDER TO PREVENT DAMAGE BY RATS OR MICE

To: The Owner or Owners
Of: 241 Barlow Moor Road
Manchester
M21 7QL

WHEREAS it appears to the Council of the City of Manchester that under the provisions of Section 4 of
the Prevention of Damage by Pests Act 1949 steps should be taken for keeping the land (which
includes any building or part of a building) free from rats or mice, of which you are the owner known as:

241 Barlow Moor Road, Manchester, M21 7QL within the said City,

THIS NOTICE HEREBY REQUIRES YOU within 10 days from the service of this notice, to take in
respect of the said land, the steps as set out below for the purpose of keeping the land free from rats or
mice:

STEPS TO BE TAKEN

1. Remove the accumulation of miscellaneous waste from the bin room of the building, which may be
creating attraction and harbourage for vermin
2. Thoroughly cleanse and disinfect the site.

AND FURTHER TAKE NOTICE that if you fail to comply with the requirements of this notice within the
period prescribed, the Council may itself execute the steps required and recover from you the expenses

reasonably incurred in so doing, and without prejudice to the right to exercise that power you will be
liable on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding £1,000.

Dated this day 21% February 2023

Signed

On behalf of, and in the name of,
Strategic Director for Neighbourhoods

NOTE: Enquiries about this notice should be made to: -

Page 121



Appendix 10, Item 4

Page 122



Appendix 10, Iltem 4

Page 123



Appendix 10, Item 4

Page 124



Appendix 10, Item 4

Page 125



Appendix 10, Iltem 4

Page 126



Appendiﬁ;ﬂé’ﬂéﬁ 4

CCIV ix inuse on site. Child are not all 1 on site adults. Under 18 are not
served alcohol. All mandatory signs ure displayed. Children will nesver be feft unsupervised.

Checklist:
Please tick to indicate agreement
e 1 hive misde or enclosed payment of the fee. FI
- 1 have enclosed the plan of the premises. H
e 1 have sent copies of this application and the plan to respomsible suthorities and
wthers where applicable. O
® 1 hawve ] 1the form by the ividual | wish 1o be
designated premises supervisor, if applicable, =)
- 1 understand thut T most now iwdvertise my application. x
| 1 understand that if 1 do not comply with the above iy up will | [
& be reject x a‘
Appli e to all individual h those ina hip which is not
a limited i P hip. but not punies or Lmited Labi I hips] §
have included d . ing my i o work in the United
Kingdom or my share code issued by the Home Office online right 1o work
checking servioe (please rewl note 15). ~
-]
IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE
WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIAULE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION

TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 248 OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A
PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO
BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF
THEIR INMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT
LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE
LIADLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION,
ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE
SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE
KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE
EMPLOYEE IS DISQUALIFIED.

preves b-n--a-w\::-h um'
A - ) and (hat my ficesse llh‘n-u‘::: A5
¢ i:',.h-ﬁluﬂolhmllu N the UK (phewsz read

-wn\-mw—mﬁu)‘

Sk Fhemarch
_ mam
watore o e gt s ssliitor v ather —

25)s/2e23
DrI s Es

—

ToOract T (oo 1 Bre viously siven) aad posal midiess for eovrespandince astnclasal
seiths this appltcation (plosme read guidanie nots 14)

AT S e R e

241 BrArcowl moodt rane

Page 127



Appendix 10, Ite@\[4r\ol

From: Gemma Hunt

Sent: Thursday, November 2, 2023 2:10 PM

To:

Subject: Sky Lounge 241 Barlow Moor Road - Warning Letter & CCTV request/ Compliance Visit
Importance: High

Dear Mr Henareh,

Following our visit to your premises yesterday, please find attached a warning letter regarding the recent
complaints and the observations from our visit.

I will re-visit the premises tomorrow, Friday 3" November at 2pm to obtain CCTV footage for the following dates:

Wednesday 25™ November 2023 from 2100 - 0000 hours
Sunday 29" November 2023 from 2100 — 0000 hours
Wednesday 1° November 2023 from 1100 - 1600 hours

In line with the data protection act | confirm the request for the CCTV is regarding an investigation which is taking
place around the premises carrying out unauthorised licensable activities.
Please be minded of the following condition attached to your Premises Licence within Annex 3:

1. The premises licence holder shall ensure that:

a) CCTV cameras are located within the premises to cover all public areas including all entrances
and exits;

b) the system records clear images permitting the identification of individuals;

c) the CCTV system is able to capture a minimum of 24 frames per second and all recorded footage
shall be securely retained for a minimum of 28 days;

d) the CCTV system operates at all times while the premises are open for licensable activities;
e) all equipment shall have a constant and accurate time and date generation;

f) the CCTV system is fitted with security functions to prevent recordings being tampered with, i.e.
password protected;

g) there shall be at least one member of trained staff at the premises during operating hours able to
provide viewable copies on request to police or authorised local authority officers as soon as is
reasonably practicable in accordance with the Data Protection Act 1998 (or any replacement
legislation).

Failure to provide CCTV in line with the above condition is an offence under S136 of the Licensing Act.
At the visit | will also be looking to view: staff training records, refusals registers and your SIA door staff log book.
Kind regards

Gemma Hunt

Licensing & Out of Hours Compliance Officer

Page 128



Appendix 10, Item 4

fits. MANCHESTER
s+ CITY COUNCIL

Licensing & Out of Hours Compliance
Team
Hammerstone Road Depot

Mr Salar Henareh Gorton

M18 8EQ

To reply please contact:
Gemma Hunt

Tel: I

Email: gemma.hunt@manchester.gov.uk

Date: 2" November 2023

Dear Mr Henareh

Sky Lounge, 241 Barlow Moor Road, Manchester, M21 7QL
Receipt of Complaints & Compliance Visit

| write to you following receipt of multiple complaints concerning noise nuisance from loud
music, breaches of permitted licensing hours and conditions of the licence. The problem is
reported to have occurred on Wednesday 25" October and Sunday 29 October.

On the 2" November | visited your premises at approximately 4pm and observed the following:

No Premises Licence Summary on display — this is an offence under S57(3) of the Licensing
Act 2003 (LA2003) - on conviction this attracts a fine up to £500.

Some of the Premises Licence conditions were checked and the following conditions were
found to be in breach: ‘

Annex 1 Condition 2: No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence:

(b) At a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of the premises
licence

Staff at the premises are not aware who_ is. Please supply us with his contact
details.

Annex 1 Condition 3: Every retail sale or supply of alcohol made under this licence must
be made or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.
As per condition 2.

Annex 2 Condition 2: All Mandatory signs shall be displayed and clearly visible.
No Smoking Signs not on display — a fixed penalty notice has been issued to you. This was

handed to — Under the Health Act 2006 it is an offence to fail to display the
appropriate signage at an "enclosed” or “substantially enclosed” public place or workplace.

Page 129



Appendix 10, Item 4

Annex 2 Condition 4: A manager shall always be on site.

Them presented himself as he keyholder but advised he was not the
manager and that the manager had nipped out, whom had been working that day. A male bar
staff member advised that he was in charge of the bar, however-told him he could not
speak to us and advised us he is not a manager.

Annex 2 Condition 11: The restaurant shall be restricted to 80 covers.

On count of both floors of the premises, | estimate there to be between 91 and 100 covers
dependent on how many customers sit in a booth.

| was advised that the upstairs was not open, however the tables were set up and empty
glasses as well as small shot bottles were on tables. The bar also had a beer keg connected
and your social media shows customers using the upstairs of the premises.

Annex 2 Condition: Between 11am and 9.30pm there shall be a member of staff on the
premises who holds a Personal Licence.

dvised me that he had applied for a Personal Licence with _Council the day
prior and then he advised that he had not and was booked on a training course.

| then spoke to both yourself by telephone and to Il again, you both advised ‘a lady’ who
was fulfilling this role had been working at the premises that day but had nipped out. You
advised me she would return and |ilillcontacted the ‘lady’ directly.

' a lady arrived who identified herself as
as interviewed under caution where she
confirmed that she did not hold Personal Licence as yet, and had not started working at the
premises.

Annex 2 Condition 15: The name and telephone number of the manager in charge shall
be prominently displayed at the premises.
Not on display.

Annex 3 Condition 1 (G): The premises licence holder shall ensure that:

There shall be at least one member of trained staff at the premises during operating
hours able to provide viewable copies on request to Police or authorised local authority
officers as soon as is reasonably practicable in accordance with Data Protection Act.
Il 2cvised that he that could not access CCTV and no others at the premises could do so. |
spoke to you on the telephone regarding this and you advised me that a manager could visit the
following day to facilitate this. You advised me that these problems were due to residents
complaining and | confirmed receipt of complaints.

Annex 3 Condition 3: No drinks shall be taken outside in the designated smoking area.

| have photographic evidence that customers have been drinking in this area whilst smoking
shisha with the canopy roof in full use.

Please note that any smoking area with a roof must be at least 50% open, | do not believe this
is the case and | would advise you to measure the area including the roof and all sides to
ensure you comply with the smoke free legislation.

A maximum fine of £2500 can be imposed on whoever manages or controls a premises if they
fail to prevent smoking in a smoke free place. | would advise you to look at the following
website: www.smokefreeengland.co.uk.

Annex 3 Condition 4: Clear & Legible notices shall be prominently displayed at any area
used for smoking requesting customers to respect the needs of local residents and use
the area quietly.

Not on display.

Page 130



Appendix 10, Item 4

Annex 3 Condition 8: The premises licence holder shall ensure that signage
demonstrating the ‘Challenge 25’ policy, as well as selling alcohol to children by proxy,
are placed at the entrance to the premises as well as being displayed in all areas serving
alcohol.

A poster was noted near the entrance; however, this had been covered up by balloons.

Floor plans — Both bars on the ground and first floor have changed location. The service
kitchen on the ground floor is now seating. A variation application to update your floor plans is
required.

The licence conditions and floor plan form part of the licence authorisation. Any breach of the
authorisation makes licensable activities unauthorised. This is an offence under S136 of the
Licensing Act 2003 and on conviction attracts an unlimited fine, and or up to 6 months in prison.

Due to the mass of breaches outlined above-:onfirmed he would take alcohol off sale to
avoid committing further offences.

| would like to take this opportunity to remind you of your obligations under the Licensing Act
2003 to uphold all of the “Licensing objectives.” The licensing objectives are the prevention of
public nuisance, public safety, the protection of children from harm, and the prevention of crime
and disorder.

Under the Licensing Act 2003 any responsible authority or interested party, including local
residents, can request a Review of a premises license if it is felt that any of the Licensing
Objectives are not being upheld in relation to the premises. As a result of any review that may
take place, additional conditions, changes in licensable activities or a restriction in a premises
operating hours may be imposed.

Environmental Protection Act 1990

The Environmental Protection Act 1990 allows the Council to serve a Statutory Nuisance
Abatement Notice where it is satisfied that a Statutory Nuisance exists. A Statutory Nuisance
Abatement Notice is a legal document that requires those responsible for the nuisance to abate
it. Failure to comply with such a Notice is a criminal offence. Should we obtain satisfactory
evidence that a Statutory Nuisance is being caused by loud music we will not hesitate to take
this enforcement action. Service of such notice may also lead to a review of the Premises
Licence where the suspension of regulated activities may be lifted.

You should be aware that we may now carryout monitoring visits to your premises or the area
around it to ensure no further offences are committed and the Licensing Objectives are being
upheld. Should we obtain satisfactory evidence that demonstrates that Licensing offences are
taking place this matter will be passed to the City Solicitors which may result in legal
proceedings being taken against you in the Magistrates Court.

If you have any questions about this letter or wish to discuss this further, please contact me on
the number above.

Yours sincerely

Gemma Hunt

Licensing & Out of Hours Officer
Your personal data is very important to us. Please refer to our privacy notice at: www.manchester.gov.uk/cecsprivacy for further information

Page 131



Licensing Act 2003 - Premises Licence Register as at 16:23 on 30 November 2023

Completed application 208594 which is a New Application for Premises Licence

indefinite

Applicant(s)
Full Name:

Designated Premises Supervisor
Full Name:

Permitted Activities

o the sale by retail of alcohol

Premises Open Hours Requested

Time From Time To
Sunday 15:00 23:00
Monday 15:00 23:00
Tuesday 15:00 23:00
Wednesday 15:00 23:00
Thursday 15:00 23:00
Friday 15:00 23:00
Saturday 15:00 23:00
Activities - Times Requested
Time From Time To
M. The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption OFF the premises only
Sunday 15:00 23:00
Monday 15:00 23:00
Tuesday 15:00 23:00
Wednesday 15:00 23:00
Thursday 15:00 23:00
Friday 15:00 23:00
Saturday 15:00 23:00

Additional Conditions

ANNEX 1A - MANDATORY CONDITIONS

Mandatory Condition 1 (Section 19 ss 2)

Where a licence authorises the sale of alcohol then no supply of alcohol may be made under the premises

licence -

Page 132



Appendix 10, Item 4

Page 133



Appendix 10, Item 4

Page 134



Appendix 10, Item 4

4. All customers will be asked to leave quietly. Clear and legible notices will be prominently displayed
to remind customers to leave quietly and have regard to our neighbours.

5. Avregister of refused sales shall be kept and maintained on the premises.

Agreed Conditions - 6th Feb 2023 - South Yorkshire Police

6. A Challenge 25 scheme must be implemented by all sales and delivery staff at the points of taking
the order and delivery. The scheme must include the maintenance of refusals records, staff training
records and the display of signage at the points of sale.

7. Staff making deliveries of alcohol will only deliver to adult recipients producing a valid photo ID (for
example a passport or photo driving licence or PASS card). If the recipient refuses to produce
appropriate ID, or if the person delivering remains in doubt that the recipient is not 18 years of age
or over, or if the identification is suspected of being invalid, delivery will be terminated. A refusals
book must be maintained to record occasions when a delivery was terminated.

8. ACCTV system will be fitted, maintained and in use at all times whilst the premises are open. The
CCTV images will be stored for 28 days and police and authorised officers of the council will be
given access to images for purposes in connection with the prevention and detection of crime and
disorder, in line with GDPR guidance. Members of the management team will be trained in the use
of the system.

Agreed Conditions - 16th March 2023 - EHP

9. The newl/varied premises licence shall not become effective until the Health Protection Service
have received an electrical condition report covering 100% of the premises and confirmation that
any remedial works arising from it have been addressed this is to ensure these matters raised
during the consultation period, have been appropriately addressed in respect of service
requirements.

ANNEX 3 - CONDITIONS ATTACHED AFTER A HEARING BY THE LICENSING AUTHORITY

None

ANNEX 4 - Plans

_ Proposed Ground Floor Plan - emailed to HPS 16/3/23

Copyright © 2004 - 2023 Idox Group Version 1.8.0.3 Terms and Conditions

Page 135



Appendég;l@’tfm 4

From: Gemma Hunt
Sent: Friday, November 3, 2023 6:30 PM

Subject: FW: Sky Lounge arlow Moor Road - Warning Letter & CCTV request/ Compliance Visit

Importance: High
Dear Mr Henareh,
Thank you for meeting with officers today.

At the beginning of the meeting | explained that we have 3 complainants, we now have 4.

I've just received an additional complaint with the following issues raised: operating outside of
permitted hours until 11pm, odours from customers smoking shisha, rubbish bins not be stored away —
left on pavement, parking issues.

You advised us today that you have sacked your DPS and that he had worked at the premises over the
last week. I've since spoken tc-and asked him if he has worked at the premises — | explained | will
be checking CCTV and it will obviously show me if he has worked there.

-as advised that he has never stepped foot in the premises. He explained that you two are friends
and you asked him to be named on the licence as a favour, there was never an intention for him to work
at the premises. As above your CCTV will demonstrate either way. You confirmed that CCTV will be
emailed to me by the end of the week.

You confirmed that Majid Mirziean will be appointed as your new DPS before you recommence alcohol
sales tomorrow. As discussed please ensure you are compliant with all licence conditions to ensure no

offences are committed.

| have attached a template challenge 25 training form as promised. You will still need to provide proxy
purchase training.

| have emailed premises licensing re the floor plan and | will get back to you on this.

Kind regards
Gemma Hunt

Licensini & Out of Hours Compliance Officer

Page 136



Appendix 10, Iltem 4

Page 137



Appendix 10, ltem 4

(rHI2

From: Gemma Hunt

Sent: Monday, November 6, 2023 6:57 AM
To
Subject: Floor Plan

Dear Salar

Following on from our conversation last week, premises Licensing have confirmed that the floor plan
on file is the one | showed you with both bars in the wrong locations and a serving kitchen is no
longer present and replaced with seating. Therefor a variation application (probably a minor) is
required.

Kind regards
Gemma Hunt
Licensing & Out of Hours Compliance Officer

Page 138



Appendix 10, Item 4

rror:: [

Sent: Monday, November 6, 2023 10:56 AM

To: Gemma Hunt <gemma.hunt@manchester.gov.uk>
Cc:ﬁ

Subject: Re: Floor Plan

Hi Gemma

| will double check now and update drawing will be submitted.
Please see the attached confirmation of DPS changed as requested.
Thanks

Regards
Salar Henareh

Page 139



From: Gemma Hunt
Sent: Monday, November 6, 2023 3:12 PM

To:
Subject: RE: Floor Plan
Hi Salar,

Thanks for these. Have you submitted a minor variation application?

Kind regards
Gemma Hunt
Licensing & Out of Hours Compliance Officer

Page 140

Appendix 10, Item 4

—4



Appendi@b,‘ﬁéﬁ 4

From: Gemma Hunt
Sent: Monday, November 6, 2023 11:41 AM

To: I

Cc: Premises Licensing <Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk>
Subject: Invalid DPS Variation/ CCTV Request - Sky Lounge, 241 Barlow Moor Road

Hi Salar,
Thank you for the info below.

| have checked with our premises licensing team and they have confirmed that they have received a
DPS consent form — but not a vary DPS application. You need to submit both. Full guidance notes are
on the link.

H\as now formally resigned at the premises as DPS.

This means that you cannot carry out any licensable activities (alcohol sales) until a new DPS is
appointed.

Please also cover up any alcohol to avoid committing the offence of exposing alcohol when it is not

for sale.

Additionally the DPS consent form has been filled out incorrectly and will need resubmitting-
is the outgoing DPS not the applicant. The contact details on this form are for yourself.
Please ensure Majid completes the DPS consent form and submits his contact details.

If you could email me Majid’s contact details that would be appreciated — our officers witnessed the
premises open beyond hours again this weekend and | understand that you advised officers both
yourself and Majid was in control of the premises.

Therefor In addition to the previous CCTV requests outstanding, please additionally send me footage
for Saturday 4™ November from 8pm until 2330pm.

Kind regards
Gemma Hunt
Licensing & Out of Hours Compliance Officer

Page 141



Appendix &(;)l\l,tte\rm?

From: Gemma Hunt

Sent: Wednesday, November 8, 2023 10:22 AM
To:
Subject: Sky Lounge 241 Barlow Moor Road

Good Morning Salar,

I am chasing up the copies of the CCTV requested 1 week ago.

Additionally, can you advise if you are selling alcohol at the premises yesterday and today?
Kind regards

Gemma Hunt
Licensing & Out of Hours Compliance Officer

Page 142



Appendix 10, Item 4

GHIS

From: Gemma Hunt

Sent: Wednesday, November 15, 2023 2:22 PM

To: [
Cc: alan.isherwood <alan.isherwood@gmp.police.ul>

Subject: New DPS

Hi Salar,

We have received the application to appoint Majid as DPS at the premises. This is currently in
consultation where Greater Manchester Police have a short window of time to object the
application.

I'd like to arrange a meeting with Majid to run through a few things to aid GMP with the application.
Please could you let me know the best time to come and meet Majid at the premises?

| am available this week Thursday, Saturday & Sunday anytime between 1130 and 8pm, let me know
what time works best for you around food service.

Additionally, | am also chasing up the requested CCTV. Please could you advise what is happening
with this?

Kind regards

Gemma Hunt
Licensing & Out of Hours Compliance Officer

Page 143



Appendix @’_’[}?T ﬁ)

From: Gemma Hunt
Sent: Sunday, November 19, 2023 6:21 PM

To:

Subject: Review of Premises Licence - Sky Lounge, 241 Barlow Moor Road
Dear Salar,
Following on from our meeting yesterday.

Officers explained that a CCTV request had been made in line with premises licence conditions,
verbally on the 1* November and in writing on the 2" November. Despite assurances that this would
be produced officers have been delayed by yourself advising that firstly your CCTV technician would
need to do this, that your CCTV engineer had not showed up, and lastly yesterday you advised
officers that you had to seek permission from customers before providing copies of the CCTV to
officers. You added that people may not want images of their wives disclosing and this was down to
religion.

Due to this deliberate action to evade compliance with the licence condition | am making you aware
that | intend to apply for a review of the premises licence, where | will be asking the committee to
revoke your Premises Licence. There are a number of other concerns that will be put to the
committee including:

- persistent breach of opening hours

- persistent breach of multiple licence conditions

- breach of floor plans

- breaches under the Health Act 2006 in relation to smoke free legislation

- multiple complaints from neighbours relating to nuisance

- not reciprocating partnership working with authorities

You have the option of complying with your Premises Licence to avoid a review, however this will
now be for you to demonstrate and produce requested items.

You will be notified in due course with the review application paperwork.

Regards
Gemma Hunt

Licensini & Out of Hours Compliance Officer

Page 144



Appendix @T\Le[np '4]

From: Premises Licensing <Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.ulk>

Sent: Monday, November 20, 2023 8:20 PM
To_

Cc: Gemma Hunt <gemma.hunt@manchester.gov.uk>
Subject: Re: Floor Plan

Hi Salar

If the layout of the premises has changed then you must submit an application
to change the plan as a matter of urgency.

The plan is part of the licence. If the layout of the premise is not as shown on the
plan then you are in breach of the licence.

| can see that you recently submitted and application to change the DPS however
this does not change the plan. The application that you may need to submit can be
found at the link below.

Licensing - Minor variation | Manchester City Council

Licensing - Minor variation | Manchester City Council
Manchester City Council&#039;s Minor variation information
www.manchester.gov.uk

cind rgercts |

Page 145



Appendix 10, It &

From: Gemma Hunt
Sent: Wednesday, November 29, 2023 1:24 PM

To: I

Cc: Premises Licensing <Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk>
Subject: Review Application - Sky Lounge, 241 Barlow Moor Road

Dear Salah & Majid,

As previously advised on the 19" November via email, unless the Premises Licence was complied
with our intention would be to apply for a review of the Premises Licence.

The ‘reasonable’ man test to produce CCTV in line with GDPR has now surpassed given it has been
28 days from the day of the first request.

Please find attached the review application. Premises Licensing will make you aware when the
committee hearing will take place.

Please be advised that further visits may take place by our team.

Under S176 of the Licensing Act 2003 the Licensing & Out of Hours team have a right of entry to the

premises with a view to seeing whether a licensable activity is being, or is to be carried on under and
in accordance with an authorisation. It is an offence if anyone intentionally obstructs an officer from
entering the premises.

| am bringing this to your attention due to a visit on the 6" November by one of my colleagues who
was checking that you were compliant with the Mandatory Conditions relating to have a DPS
appointed and you advised that you were instructing a solicitor as you were not happy about getting
visits.

The door is still open to produce the CCTV footage as requested.

If you have any further questions please do not hesitate to get in touch.

Kind regards
Gemma Hunt

Licensini & Out of Hours Compliance Officer

Page 146



Appendix 10, Item 4

GHIA

Sent: Wednesday, November 29, 2023 4:04:42 pm

To: Gemma Hunt <gemma.hunt@manchester.gov.uk>
Subject: Re: Review Application - Sky Lounge, 241 Barlow Moor Road

Hi Gemma,

As we discussed and explained on the 19th of November, we are happy to provide all CCTV records,
but as mentioned we need our customer's permission before we can send any pictures or videos
out, if you send me a formal letter or email if any of our costumers complain as we shared the
private pictures and videos you can be responsible for that, then we will send you all records as you
requested.

And regarding premises licencing review, the information has been passed to our business

legal team, they will deal with it.

Lastly, we never complain about the officer visiting and we are always happy to work with Licensing
& Out of Hours Compliance Officers and follow the the law and role of Manchester City Council

for primes licencing, | think is misunderstanding happened here.

Many Thanks

Regards
Salar Henareh

Page 147



Appendix 10, Item 4

GH20

From: Gemma Hunt <gemma.hunt@manchester.gov.uk>

Sent: Wednesday, November 29, 2023 4:48 PM

To:

Subject: Re: Review Application - Sky Lounge, 241 Barlow Moor Road

Dear Salah

Please be advised CCTV provided from your premises will be stored on secure storage only viewable by
LOOH officers.

If offences are viewed, these images may be shared with the licensing committee, our solicitors and the
courts.

Kind regards
Gemma

Page 148



Appendix 10, Item 4

GH21

From:

Sent: Wednesday, November 29, 2023 4:52:49 pm

To: Gemma Hunt <gemma.hunt@manchester.gov.uk>

Subject: Re: Review Application - Sky Lounge, 241 Barlow Moor Road

Gemma,
As mentioned earlier, please add this on the email if our costumer complains you are a responsible.
Many thanks

Regards
Salar Henareh

Page 149



Appendix 10, Item 4

GH22

From: Gemma Hunt <gemma.hunt@manchester.gov.uk>

Sent: Wednesday, November 29, 2023 5:01 PM

To

Subject: Re: Review Application - Sky Lounge, 241 Barlow Moor Road

Dear Salar,

If your customers are unhappy, you may provide them with my contact details and | will explain the
purpose of the CCTV use.

Please visit the ICO website and make yourself aware of your obligations in regards to displaying CCTV
signage in your premises to make customers aware that you use CCTV.

| await the footage.
Kind regards

Gemma Hunt
Licensing and Out of Hours Compliance Officer

Page 150



Appendix 10, Item 4

GH23

From:

Sent: Wednesday, November 29, 2023 11:10 PM

To: Gemma Hunt <gemma.hunt@manchester.gov.uk>

Subject: Re: Review of Premises Licence - Sky Lounge, 241 Barlow Moor Road
Hi Gemma,

Please see my response below in RED.

On Sun, 19 Nov 2023 at 18:21, Gemma Hunt <gemma.hunt@manchester.gov.uk> wrote:

Dear Salar,

Following on from our meeting yesterday.

Officers explained that a CCTV request had been made in line with premises licence conditions, verbally
on the 1°* November and in writing on the 2" November. Despite assurances that this would be
produced officers have been delayed by yourself advising that firstly your CCTV technician would need
to do this, that your CCTV engineer had not showed up, and lastly yesterday you advised officers that
you had to seek permission from customers before providing copies of the CCTV to officers. You added
that people may not want images of their wives disclosing and this was down to religion. as discussed
before and my last emails and here as some of our costmore as dont like to share her/his picturs and
videos, and | requsted to allow me and give me permission to share these videos with you, as mentioned
before if you can send me formal latter or email to confirm it as you are responsible if any of these
costomer complaining about the share videos or pictore, then | will send all result or we ahve to wait
until im get permission from all costomers.

Due to this deliberate action to evade compliance with the licence condition | am making you aware that
| intend to apply for a review of the premises licence, where | will be asking the committee to revoke
your Premises Licence. There are a number of other concerns that will be put to the committee
including:

| think you're taking everything here personally not as your job responsibility,

- persistent breach of opening hours Please provide information and evidence as we breach of our
opening hours.

Page 151



Appendix 10, Item 4

- persistent breach of multiple licence conditions Please provide information and evidence

- breach of floor plans The floor plan has been sent by email and our office mager talk to you few times
regard this and new plan has been submited through to the system.

- breaches under the Health Act 2006 in relation to smoke free legislation the designated somke area
has been marked out and the No some artea sign presented inside.

- multiple complaints from neighbours relating to nuisance Please provide evidence and as mentioned
Im happy to do test.

- not reciprocating partnership working with authorities we always folowing the role and law for permiss
licencing.

You have the option of complying with your Premises Licence to avoid a review, however this will now
be for you to demonstrate and produce requested items.

You will be notified in due course with the review application paperwork.

Regards
Gemma Hunt

Licensing & Out of Hours Compliance Officer

R e S R e

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are
addressed.

If you have received this email in error, please notify the system manager.

The full text of the Council's email disclaimer is available at: www.manchester.gov.uk/emaildisclaimer.

Your personal data s very important to us. Please refer to our privacy notice at: www.manchester.gov.uk/privacy for further information.

This footnote also canfirms that this email message has bheen swept for the presence of computer viruses.

R AR R

Page 152



Appendix 10, Item 4

GH24

Sent: Wednesday, November 29, :

To: Gemma Hunt <gemma.hunt@manchester.gov.uk>
Subject: Re: Review Application - Sky Lounge, 241 Barlow Moor Road

Hi Gemma,

Thank you for reaching out. | will definitely provide your contact details to any unhappy customers
regarding the CCTV use. | will also make sure to visit the ICO website and familiarize myself with the
obligations regarding displaying CCTV signage on our premises.

| will also ensure that our customers are aware of the use of CCTV in our premises. | will send you the
footage as soon | get permission from our unhappy customers.

Thank you for your assistance.

Kind Regards
Salar Henareh

Page 153



Appendix 10, Item 4

GH25

From: Gemma Hunt
Sent: Thursday, November 30, 2023 8:51 AM

T
SMW@, 241 Barlow Moor Road

Morning Salar,

| confirm receipt of your two emails thank you, | note the content & await the CCTV footage.

A full evidence bundle will be served on you in due course, prior to the committee hearing.

I will also give you the opportunity to attend a PACE interview under caution to give you the opportunity
to put your points across in relation to the licensing offences, the letter invite will follow within the next

week.

Kind regards
Gemma Hunt

Licensini & Out of Hours Compliance Officer

Page 154



Appendix 10, Item 4

GH26

From: Gemma Hunt
Sent: Thursday, November 30, 2023 11:10 AM

To: I

Subject: CCTV Request for 14th & 15th November 2023 - Sky lounge, 241 Barlow Moor Road, Chorlton
Dear Salar,

We have received additional information today alleging offences under S136 of the Licensing Act 2003
and under the Health Act 2006 in relation to smoke free legislation, taking place on the premises at Sky
Lounge, 241 Barlow Moor Road on Tuesday 14" November & Wednesday 15" November 2003.

| therefor request copies of your CCTV for Tuesday 14" November and Wednesday 15" November
2003 between 1700 hours and 0000 hours (midnight).

I specifically request cameras covering the whole of the upstairs first floor of the premises, cameras
covering the entrance/ exit of the ground floor, and cameras covering the ground floor bar.

| can confirm that any CCTV provided to myself as an authorised local authority officer will be kept &
stored securely in line with GDPR. As already advised customers may contact ourselves if they wish to
know how their images have been used or stored.

The request for CCTV is inline with the following condition attached to the Premises Licence:

Annex 3 Condition 1

The premises licence holder shall ensure that:

a) CCTV cameras are located within the premises to cover all public areas including all
entrances and exits;

b) the system records clear images permitting the identification of individuals;

c) the CCTV system is able to capture a minimum of 24 frames per second and all
recorded footage shall be securely retained for a minimum of 28 days;

d) the CCTV system operates at all times while the premises are open for licensable
activities;
e) all equipment shall have a constant and accurate time and date generation;

f) the CCTV system is fitted with security functions to prevent recordings being
tampered with, i.e. password protected;

g) there shall be at least one member of trained staff at the premises during operating
hours able to provide viewable copies on request to police or authorised local
authority officers as soon as is reasonably practicable in accordance with the Data
Protection Act 1998 (or any replacement legislation).

Page 155



Appendix 10, Item 4

In line with part (g) it is reasonable to request the CCTV to be made available within 48 hours.
However, | can arrange to collect this on Monday 4'" December which provides you with 4 days’
notice. Please confirm what time would be suitable for me to collect the footage.

*Please note that this request is in addition to previous requests for CCTV for other dates.
Kind regards

Gemma Hunt

Licensing & Out of Hours Compliance Officer

Page 156



Appendix 10, Item 4

Page 157



Appendix 10, Item 4

Page 158



Appendix 10, Item 4

Instagram: www.instagram.com/gtrmanchesterpolice
Flickr: www.flickr.com/ampolice1

YouTube: www.youtube.com/gmpolice

Pinterest: www.pinterest.co.uk/gmpolice

To find out what is happening in your area, visit www.gmp.police.uk/alyour-area where you will be able to
follow local social media accounts.

DISCLAIMER: This message and any attachment may contain information which is confidential or
privileged. It is intended for the addressee(s) only. If you have received this message in error, notify the
sender and delete it and any attachments without retaining a copy.

Unauthorised use or disclosure of the contact may be unlawful. Any opinions expressed may not be
official policy.

Unless encrypted, internet email is not to be treated as a secure means of communication. Greater
Manchester Police records and monitors all email activity and content and you are advised that any email
you send may be subject to monitoring.

Thank you for your co-operation.

From: Salar Henareh |

Sent: 12 December 2023 20:55
To: Alan Isherwood <Alan.Isherwood@gmp.police.uk>
Subject: Re: Urgent CCTV Request from Greater Manchester Police Licensing

Caution: This email came from outside GIVIP. Do not open attachments, click on links or scan QR codes
in this email unless you recognise the sender’s e-mail address and know the content is safe.

Good evening Alan,

Thank you for your email and sorry for the delay but | have been extremely busy today. I'm happy to
provide you with everything as I'm following the law correctly, license and not breaking rules. this a
family business and we have invested a lot of money because we aim to provide the community with
something unique and healthy. I've been having a problem with the camera system since last week
and contacted the engineer to fix the system. I'm not above the law at all and | respect every rule. |
appreciate you can understand that this is a new business and | feel I've been

targeted. The community are very happy as we provide the best service for our community.

once the system is fixed | will send you everything.

| also have another issue, we provide private parties upstairs for the Muslim community and | need to
get their permission before | send their photos off as they were not wearing scarves and it is against the
law to share their footage. | will speak to my lawyer regarding this point as | don't want to breach any
GPDR. this is the only reason | have not provided her with footage as | will be breaching their
confidentiality.

Page 159



Appendix 10, Item 4

I would also like to know who issued the complaint and the allegation as | need to investigate it with the
staff. Now I'm attending the premises every day and also advertised for a manager role. | have also
arranged staff meetings with all the staff and employed new staff who is able to speak English fluently,
reinforcing the rules and regulations, so everyone is clear about the job and rules. My manager also is
preparing a new document for all the staff to sign so everyone is clear about the rules.

I will also ask my lawyer to be in touch with you regarding false allegations made against me.
Thank you very much for your cooperation. i look forward to hearing form you.

Many Thanks
Regards
Salar Henareh

From: Alan Isherwood <Alan.Isherwood@gmp.police.uk>

Sent: Wednesday, December 13, 2023 7:23:29 am

To: Salar Henareh

Cc: Gemma Hunt <gemma.hunt@manchester.gov.uk>; Paul.0'Donnell <Paul.0'Donnell@gmp.police.uk>
Subject: RE: Urgent CCTV Request from Greater Manchester Police Licensing

Good Morning
Thank you for your reply.
| am more than happy to speak to your solicitor so please put them in touch with me as soon as possible.

In the meantime, please let me know when | can collect the CCTV footage, that has been requested by
myself and also by the council on previous occasions dating back to early November, some six weeks
ago. Bearing in mind one of the dates is 28 days old now and another will be 28 days old in 2 days’
time, in order to abide by the CCTV condition on your premises licence, you should ensure this footage
is not overwritten and is downloaded immediately.

Kind Regards
Alan

PC 17659 Alan Isherwood
Divisional Licensing Officer
Greater Manchester Police

City of Manchester Division

1% Floor

Manchester Town Hall Extension

Page 160



Appendix 10, Item 4

Lloyd Street
Manchester
M2 5DB

alan.isherwood@gmp.police.uk

0161 856 6017

Follow us on Twitter: @gmpolice

*NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED*

From: Gemma Hunt <gemma.hunt@manchester.gov.uk>

Sent: Wednesday, December 13, 2023 4:06 PM

To: alan.isherwood <alan.isherwood@gmp.police.uk>; Salar Henareh —
Cc: Paul.0'Donnell <Paul.0'Donnell@gmp.police.uk>

Subject: Re: Urgent CCTV Request from Greater Manchester Police Licensing

Dear Salar,

| can advise the allegations are relating to unauthorised licensable activities taking place on the dates we
have requested CCTV for.

Whilst the review application has been in consultation we have received 2 new complaints regarding out
of hours activities, noise nuisance and an assault at the premises. We have 6 Complainant's in total. We
cannot disclose who complainants are for GDPR reasons.

CCTV is a tool to protect your business, therefore if the allegations are false providing the CCTV would
prove this.

Additionally, customers shouldn't be on your premises beyond 9.30pm, so if you are wanting to prove
the allegations false, you could at least provide the footage from 9.30pm onwards as your customers
images would not be on them.

Kind regards
Gemma Hunt
Licensing & Out of Hours Compliance Officer

Page 161



Appendix 10, Item 4

GH28

From

Sent: Wednesday, December 20, 2023 3:16 PM

To: Gemma Hunt <gemma.hunt@manchester.gov.uk>
oy

Subject: New Year's Eve

You don't often get email from joceline100@yahoo.co.uk. Learn why this is important

Good afternoon Gemma,

I hope you are well. I'm|jjjjfjpartner only joined him recently and supporting him to run the restaurant
and to follow the correct procedure.

I'm not sure if you spoke yo -ve have an enquiry regarding New year's Eve. | understand the
operating hours between. 11am - 9.30 pm. However, are we allowed to extend the limited time just for
new Years Eve?

| would also like to arrange a meeting meeting with to introduce myself properly. When is the best time
to meet up with.
Kind regards

Sent from Yahoo Mail on Android

From: Gemma Hunt

Sent: Wednesday, December 20, 2023 4:10 PM
To:

Cc:

Subject: RE: New Year's Eve

pear NN

Thank you for your email below.

Regarding a meeting, whilst | am open to this, you may be aware that on my last meet with Salah he
advised me that | was ‘barred’ from the premises, after | had displayed blue public notices for the review
application. He also then proceeded to call me racist.

You may also be aware that as a Licensing Officer | have a right of entry to the premises which takes
precedent. However, | have to consider my personal safety following the last incident, and so | would
require further details about the meeting, such as who will be in attendance and the agenda you wish to
discuss.

Page 162



Appendix 10, Item 4

For NYE your only option would be to submit a late TEN today, however | would object to it. With a late
TEN if an objection is received the event cannot go ahead. So ultimately, sorry no you wouldn’t be able
to extend the hours on NYE.

Please feel free to contact me should you have any further queries.

Kind regards
Gemma Hunt

Licensini & Out of Hours Compliance Officer

Page 163



Appendix 10, Item 4

GH29

- Forwarded message —-
Fror |

To: "gemma.hunt@manchester.gov.uk" <gemma.hunt@manchester.gov.uk>
Ce: I, ' C Alan Isherwood"

<alan.isherwood@gmp.police.uk>
Sent: Thu, 28 Dec 2023 at 13:07

Subject: Re: Re. Skylounge, 241 Barlow New Road, Chorlon - Licensing Issues

Hi Gemma,
Hope you are well and had a good Christmas.

Thank you for our detailed conversation before the Christmas period regarding Skylounge. | am
also aware that you had a meeting withjj ]l st week. | have also had further
conversations with [ myself.

Just picking up fron-e-mail below | wanted to confirm to you that | will not be moving
forward with Skylounge as a client and |Jjjfhas also confirmed to me that she will not be
moving forward with a continued interest in the business. Notwithstanding our strong advice
that operating within the licence conditions needed to be a start of demonstrating a changing
pattern of behaviour, this has not been positively implemented. We are both aware that there
continues to be breaches of the licence conditions and therefore cannot work constructively to
move matters forward with the current management team.

| will therefore not need to be provided with your evidence bundle when this is complete.

Thank you again for your time in discussing the matter.

Kind Regards

Page 164



Appendix 10, ltem 4

Page 165



Appendix 10, Item 4

GH30

From: Gemma Hunt

Sent: Wednesday, January 3, 2024 3:19 PM
To: Salar Henareh

Subject: FW: CCTV Requests December 2023

Apologies for clarity the CCTV requests are for Sky Lounge, 241 Barlow Moor Road, Chorlton.

From: Gemma Hunt
Sent: Wednesday, January 3, 2024 3:18 PM

To: Salar Henare h

Subject: CCTV Requests December 2023
Dear Salar,

We have received additional information, and Licensing & Out of Hours officers have witnessed further
breaches of the premises licence at Sky Lounge, the offences fall under S136 of the Licensing Act 2003.

| therefor request copies of your CCTV for:

12" December 2023 — cameras covering all of the first floor from 2130 — 2300 hours

14" December 2023 — cameras covering the whole premises from 2130 — 2300 hours

27" December 2023 — cameras covering all of the first floor from 2130 — 2300 hours

31* December 2023 - cameras covering the whole premises from 2130 — 0100 hours on the 1** January
2024

| can confirm that any CCTV provided to myself as an authorised local authority officer will be kept &
stored securely in line with GDPR. As already advised customers may contact ourselves if they wish to
know how their images have been used or stored.

The request for CCTV is in line with the following condition attached to the Premises Licence:

Annex 3 Condition 1

The premises licence holder shall ensure that:

a) CCTV cameras are located within the premises to cover all public areas including all
entrances and exits;

b) the system records clear images permitting the identification of individuals;

c) the CCTV system is able to capture a minimum of 24 frames per second and all
recorded footage shall be securely retained for a minimum of 28 days;

d) the CCTV system operates at all times while the premises are open for licensable
activities;

e) all equipment shall have a constant and accurate time and date generation;

Page 166



Appendix 10, Item 4

f) the CCTV system is fitted with security functions to prevent recordings being
tampered with, i.e. password protected;

g) there shall be at least one member of trained staff at the premises during operating
hours able to provide viewable copies on request to police or authorised local
authority officers as soon as is reasonably practicable in accordance with the Data
Protection Act 1998 (or any replacement legislation).

In line with part (g) it is reasonable to request the CCTV to be made available within 48 hours.
Please confirm what time would be suitable for me to collect the footage on Friday 5" January
2024.

*Please note that this request is in addition to previous requests for CCTV for other dates and that
have still not been produced.

Kind Regards
Gemma Hunt

Licensing & Out of Hours Compliance Officer

Page 167



Appendix 10, Item 4

Page 168



Appendix 10, Iltem 4

Page 169



Appendix 10, Item 4

Page 170



Appendix 11, Item 4

Page 171



Appendix 11, Iltem 4

Page 172



Appendix 11, Item 4

Page 173



Appendix 11, Item 4

Page 174



Appendix 11, Item 4

Page 175



Appendix 11, Iltem 4

Page 176



Appendix 11, Item 4

Page 177



Page 178

Appendix 11, Iltem 4



Appendix 11, ltem 4

Page 179



Appendix 11, ltem 4

Page 180



Appendix 11, Iltem 4

Visits & Call Outs

Date Visiting Officers Details

1/11/23 Gemma Hunt & Gareth Hall | Reactive Compliance Visit

-11 condition breaches including the mandatory
conditions relating to the DPS & authority to sell
alcohol. No-one with a Personal Licence works at
the premises.

-No Summary on display, no full licence on site &
floor plans incorrect,

-No smoking signs not on display.

- Smoking area appears more than 50% enclosed.
-PLH & staff give misleading info to officers who
wait around for over 1 hour for the DM with a
licence to arrive, who arrives and admits she isn’t
a personal licence holder & doesn’t work at the
premises, she is the wife of the chef.

-PLH makes comments about these problems
being due to residential complaints.

2/11/23 Sion Roberts Call out re open before permitted hours, call
received at 10am

-Officer arrived at 1051am premises open to the
public with customers inside, no manager on site,
gave copy of licence to host & explained the
permitted hours.

3/11/23 Gemma Hunt & Gareth Hall | Compliance Visit

-Discussed complaints and breaches.

-Substantial support & advice provided.

-PLH advises he has sacked the DPS and intends to
appoint a new staff member Majid Mirzaeian.

4/11/23 DP— resigns
at 3:08am (electronically)

4/11/23 Steve Titterton & Mike Compliance Visit

Wilson -Still serving food at 2135.

-Drive by at 2205 customers still sat in front area
of the premises.

-Advised DPS variation applied for, later transpires
only a consent form had been filled out, no app
submitted. Trading without a DPS.

6/11/23 Margaret Lewis Compliance Visit (ensure trading with DPS)
-Customer smoking shisha in an area substantially
enclosed.

-Officer advised by PLH solicitor instructed as not
happy with no of visits made by our team.
-Receipt shown of vary DPS app made (rejected on

7/11/23)
8/11/23 Wayne Adams & Pauline Compliance Visit
Gregory -2146 approx 10 patrons still using the premises
11/11/23 Gemma Hunt (external Compliance Visit
obs) -2202 customers seen leaving the premises

Page 181



Appendix 11, Item 4

Page 182



Appendix 11, Item 4

Page 183



Appendix 11, ltem 4

Page 184



Appendix 11, Item 4

Page 185



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 12, Item 4
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 187



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 15, Item 4

Blue notice — history of notices being put up and removed

Blue notices were put up to advertise the application both at the Town Hall and
outside the premises on 29 November 2023. Notices at the premises were put on the
premises railings on both the Aldermary Road and Barlow Moor Road elevations,
and a further notice was put on a lamp post on Aldermary Road.

The history of notices at the premises is as below in chronological order:

29/11/23

Blue notices put up by LOOH, photos of notices in position provided by LOOH as
below.

01/12/23

From: Gemma Hunt <gemma.hunt@manchester.gov.uk>

Sent: 01 December 2023 13:48

To: Premises Licensing <Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk>
Subject: Sky Lounge Review - Public Notices

Page 303



Appendix 15, Item 4

Afternoon,

We have a problem... I've just been past the prem and the blue notices have been
taken down. Attached photos if the empty wallets they were in.

| can replace ther |
What's your thoughts on what to do next?

Kind regards
Gemma Hunt

Licensini & Out of Hours Compliance Officer

(NB: photos of the places that notices were removed were attached to this email and
are as pasted below, HH)

Page 304



Appendix 15, Item 4

01/12/23

The premises licensing team advised that the removed notices should be replaced,
and that in addition more notices should be put up in view of notices having been
removed.

01/12/23

From: Gemma Hunt <gemma.hunt@manchester.gov.uk>

Sent: 01 December 2023 17:09

To: Premises Licensing <Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk>
Subject: Fwd: Blue notices Barlow Moor Road 1.12.23

Hi,

Please find attached new notices on display in 4 locations.

—

Kind regards
Gemma

(NB: photos of the new notices were attached to this email and are as pasted
overleaf, HH)

Page 305



Appendix 15, Item 4

Page 306



Appendix 15, Item 4

04/12/23 - 05/12/23

From: Gemma Hunt <gemma.hunt@manchester.gov.uk>

Sent: 05 December 2023 02:24

To: Premises Licensing <Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk>
Subject: Blues - Sky Lounge Review

Morning,

The public notices have been removed again. We have put more up tonight.

Please could you print off & laminate another handful? Please could you leave them
somewhere where LOOH sit and I'll collect them at night.

Kind regards

Gemma Hunt

Licensing & Out of Hours Compliance Officer

(photos taken on 4 December 2023, were attached to this email as pasted below)

Page 307



Appendix 15, Item 4

12/12/23

From: Gemma Hunt <gemma.hunt@manchester.gov.uk>

Sent: 12 December 2023 19:48

To: Premises Licensing <Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk>
Subject: Sky Lounge, 241 Barlow Moor Road - Notices

Evening,

Just to advise the notices had been taken down again. Attached are
photos of them gone. | had one with me so | just put the one back up
on the lamppost.

The visit was at 18:08 today.

Kind regards

Gemma Hunt

Licensing & Out of Hours Compliance Officer

Page 308



Appendix 16, Item 4
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 309



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Review of a Premises Licence - Sky Lounge, 241 Barlow Moor Road, Manchester, M21 7QL
	Appendix 1 - GIS map and location photo - PUBLISH
	Appendix 2 - application - PUBLISH
	Appendix 2 - application - DO NOT PUBLISH
	Appendix 3 - current licence - PUBLISH
	Appendix 3 - current licence - DO NOT PUBLISH
	Appendix 4 - representations - PUBLISH
	Appendix 4 - representations - DO NOT PUBLISH
	Appendix 5 - LOOH bundle part 1 - PUBLISH (reduced file size)
	Appendix 5 - LOOH bundle part 2 - PUBLISH (reduced file size)
	Appendix 5 - LOOH bundle part 3 - PUBLISH (reduced file size)
	Appendix 5 - LOOH bundle part 1 - DO NOT PUBLISH
	Appendix 6 - blue notices history - PUBLISH
	Appendix 6 - blue notices history - DO NOT PUBLISH




